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Group Financial Highlights

B EE Financial data 2007 2008 2009
(X FETHT) (expressed in HK$'000)
BEH Turnover 178,755 184,206 663,373
EM (8) Gross profit (loss) (10,374) 7815 79,114
KRAAERFEA Profit (loss) for the year attributable
EIERFERN (EE) to equity holders of the Company  (573,901) (499,626) 68,033

BEESE Total borrowings 583,005 761,690 1,277,410
RRAERFEAEEER Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 1,567,858 1,198,829 1,532,732
WEME - BERR Acquisition of property,

plant and equipment 3,086 67,586 108,125
BIMAK Staff costs 26,809 39,892 54,803
BRANERREREA Net asset attributable to equity

IEFEEE B) (K1) holders of the Company

per share (HK$) (note 1) 0433 0.331 0.386
B 7 bt % Financial ratios
mEBL X (BiE2) Current ratio (note 2) 332 178 2.75
REYLL K (M 7£3) Quick ratio (note 3) 3.19 .59 2.59
BELX (Kita) Gearing ratio (note 4) 37% 64% 83%
ft 5t - Note:
1. BRARQHE VNN FE I, Net asset attributable Equity attributable Number of

BERFEA = BaBEAA + B#T to equity holders of = to equity holders =
EHFEEE  EEER 5 8B the Company per share  of the Company
2. RBHER = RPEE nEAE 2. Currentratio = Current assets =+
3. ERRX = (RHEE - FE) + RPAEE 3. Quick ratic = (Current assets - Inventories) +
/N
4. BELE = [EEEE BaraA 4. Gearingratio = Total borrowings +
EiEER

issued shares

at year end

Current liabilities

Current liabilities

Equity attributable

to equity holders

of the Company

4 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 3|

December 2009 is summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2009, the Group’s turnover for the year 2009
amounted to HK$663.37 million with a profit for the year of HK$70.80
million in contrast to those for the year 2008 of HK$184.21 million with
a loss for the year of HK$495.93 million respectively. The turnover for the
year comprised sale of wind energy related products of HK$314.57
million, sale of electricity generated from wind farm of HK$31.54 million,
sale of chemical materials of HK$170.84 million, sale of rare-earth
permanent-magnet motor products of HK$56.14 million and sales of
HK$90.28 million related to telecommunication business whereas the
turnover in 2008 comprised sale of chemical materials of HK$47.77
million, sale of electricity of HK$3.99 million, sale of rare-earth
permanent-magnet motor products of HK$35.18 million and sales of
HK$97.26 million related to telecommunication business. The profit for
the year was mainly attributable to profit contribution of jointly
controlled entities relating to automotive component business of
HK$89.07 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Internal Management System

In 2009, the Group has enhanced the internal management system
substantially in order to well prepare the Group to capture high capital
return in the course of applying the abundant undeveloped wind
resources in various regions of China, especially Inner Mongolia.

Group Financing

In November 2009, the Group completed a placing and top-up
subscription of 345 million shares at the placing price of HK$0.8 per
share. The net proceeds of HK$266 million was primarily used for
developing wind energy projects, improving the capital structure of the
Group as well as enhancing market capitalisation. As a result, the
shareholding of the controlling shareholder, China Academy of Launch
Vehicle Technology, was diluted from 73.1% to 66.75%.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business of Wind Energy Project

Development of wind farm in Jiuquan, Gansu Province

In October 2009, Gansu Industries and Information Management
Committee, Jiuguan City People's Government (“Jiuguan Government”),
the Company and China Huadian New Energy Development Co. Ltd.
("Huadian New Energy”) entered into a strategic framework agreement,
which provides, inter alia, that Jiuguan Government of Gansu Province will
plan to grant wind resource development rights as to 200,000KW in the
“eleventh five" period and 200,000KW each year in the “twelfth five"
period to Huadian New Energy for its development and construction of
wind farm in Jiuquan area; Huadian New Energy will apply the 900KW and
2MW direct-wind turbines of the Group to develop the said wind farm.

The wind energy inherent resources in Gansu Province rank the fifth in
the whole China, mainly concentrated in Jiuguan area. The wind energy
intensity in Jiuguan area amounts to more than 30 million KW, of which
more than 20 million KW can be utilized. The construction of wind farm
of tens of million KW wind power represents an important
demonstrative leading function of the development of wind energy
industry in Gansu.

Four platforms of direct-drive wind turbine project under
steady development

In 2009, according to the development strategy of the Group, the Group
actively worked together with Emergya Wind Technologies B.V. (“"EWT")
with four platforms of “Research and Development, Manufacture, Testing
and Service” under steady development.

Inner Mongolia Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd. (the
“Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant”), a joint venture between
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. ("BEI", a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group) and EWT with shareholding of 95% and 5% respectively, is
primarily engaged
in  component
purchase, general
assembling,
installation  and
testing, and
technical service of
large to medium
direct-drive wind

turbines. Equipped
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Management Discussion and Analysis

with advanced technical equipment and sophisticated manufacturing
technicians, it has an annual production capacity of 400 900KW direct-
drive wind turbines and 200 2MW permanent-magnet direct-drive wind
turbines.

The aerospace direct-drive wind turbines manufactured by Wind Turbine

General Assembling Plant has the following technological advantages over
traditional gearbox-driven wind turbines: high transmission efficiency,
which increases power generation by about 5%; less time and costs used
for equipment maintenance; favorably assists in breaking through the
bottleneck in manufacturing of components, thereby speeding up
development in manufacturing of wind turbines; and high start-up torque
of direct-drive wind turbines, especially permanent-magnet direct-drive
wind turbines, being in the future development direction for large-sized
wind turbines.

A number of management policies were established in 2009 and the
Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant operated smoothly in that
procurements of components were improved and comprehensive quality
control was carried out, including in-factory supervision and ex-factory
acceptance, process inspection and delivery inspection, while delivery
issues were resolved. Besides, domestic production progressed smoothly,
55 direct-drive wind turbines were successfully produced and sold for
carrying out related tuning and testing, thereby making profit
contribution.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Inner Mongolia Wind Turbine Blade Plant

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. (the “Blade
Plant”), a joint venture between BEIl (as to 35.9% shareholding), New
Image Development Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) (as to
20.5% shareholding), Aerospace Research Institute of Materials &
Processing Technology and EWT is primarily engaged in research and
development, design, production and service of large structural

composite material products with an annual production capacity of 400
900KW direct-drive wind turbine blades and 200 2MW permanent-
magnet direct-drive wind turbine blades.
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During the production process, the Blade Plant uses an advanced vacuum
infusion technology, which avoids drawbacks such as uneven water
absorption, lamination and resin content during the complex formation
and solidification of the composite materials and which rather makes use
of simple crafts and allows a clean production environment that produces
products of higher stability, facilitating batch production and mass
production.

In 2009, the Blade Plant finished a series of work such as corporate
system establishment, staff recruitment and production material
preparation. Two sets of moulds were smoothly installed, tested and
adjusted, thus achieving a production schedule of a blade a day. A total of
186 pieces of 900KW direct-drive wind turbine blades were produced.
Smooth purchase of blade materials and steady progress in domestic
production of materials contributed to reduced costs, consolidating the
market competitiveness edge of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

China Energine Wind Power Industrial Park

Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd., a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Group, occupied a site of 500 acres as an

operating platform for the Inner Mongolia wind turbine base. It has

constructed plants, offices and warehouses for the Wind Turbine General

Assembling Plant and the Blade Plant in the Inner Mongolia Wind Power

Industrial Park and started to provide them with property leasing and

management service.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Research and development of technology
Wind power technology research and [

development center is responsible for
absorption and adaptation work as to
technologies of 900KW direct-drive wind
turbine. It has completed the design of
low-temperature 900KW  direct-drive
wind turbine and coped with the
production of the Wind Turbine General
Assembling Plant. Meanwhile, the
research and development center in its
best endeavour commenced domestic
production of core components.
Localisation of domestic productions of
blades and wind turbines have been completed. Localization of domestic
production of control systems and inverters are being implemented now.
For the purpose of future development, the current focused tasks also
include the research, development and innovation of high-power
permanent-magnet direct-drive wind turbines, and the technological

research of offshore high-power wind turbines.

Sales of wind turbines

Beijing EWT-CASC Directwind Marketing and Sales Co. Ltd, a joint
venture between the Company, EWT and Beijing Direct Energy Corp.
with shareholding of 25%, 60% and [5% respectively, is engaged in
domestic and global market development and sales of wind turbines
produced from the Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant. In February
2010, the Company entered into an Equity Transfer Agreement with
EWT, pursuant to which the Company will acquire 40% of the sales
company from EWT for a consideration of HK$1.82 million. After the
acquisition, the sales company will become a 65% subsidiary of the
Company, consummating the Company's strategy of controlling all the
entities in the supply-chain of the wind turbines sales and production
business. With respect to the whole process in the sales and production
of wind turbines and wind blades utilising of the advanced direct-drive
technology of the EWT direct-drive wind turbines, this enables the
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Group to benefit from the whole of the supply-chain, instead of only
accounting for the share of profit of the sales company in the supply-

” "

chain through equity accounting.

S

Trading of materials

Since October 2008, BEI started carrying on trading business on pure
terephthalic acid (“"PTA"). PTA is an important organic raw material
refined from crude oil. It can be used to produce polyester products,
including synthetic fiber such as polyester fiber; while the main material
used for the production of wind turbine blades is a variety of polyester
fiber.

Given the rapid development of the polyester application industry in
China, there were huge demands for PTA in China. In 2009, this business
realised sales of HK$I71 million, representing a stable increase of
HK$123 million compared to 2008. In 2010, this business will further
expand by building on this foundation to explore new customers.

Nantong Acciona

Nantong Acciona suffered from the intense competition in the domestic
wind turbine market and sluggish progress made on domestic production
of wind turbine. In order to bail Nantong Acciona out, BEI and
International Commercial E Industria S.A. (“ICI") (replacing Chook Bo
Group as stated in September 2009) acquired from Acciona Energia
Internacional S.A. (“Acciona”) its entire 45% interest (5% and 40% by BEI
and ICI respectively) in Nantong Acciona in December 2009 at a
consideration of 45% of the net asset value of Nantong Acciona as at 30
June 2009. As a result, BEl had to pay RMB2.766 million to increase its

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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interest in Nantong Acciona from 45% to 50% for joint control of
Nantong Acciona with ICl. Acciona bought all the inventory and
dedicated equipment other than those required by the after-sale
service at their book value and provided technical support to the sold
wind turbines. Upon acquisition, the Group will be engaged in
independent research and development of self-developed wind
turbines, especially those high-power direct-drive wind turbines, in
utilizing the comprehensive hardware facilities of Nantong Acciona and
concentration of plants in Nantong, expecting Nantong Acciona will
develop into a manufacture base of Energine wind turbines in Jiangsu
province in the future.

Wind Farm Operations

Liaoning Benxi

The Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm project, controlled and
operated by the Group, is installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind
turbines with a capacity of 24,650KW in total.

An electricity level of 55.07 million kwh was realized during 2009,
increased by 0.03 million kwh over last year. On-grid power generation

amounted to 53.06 million kwh with realized income from principal
activity of HK$31.54 million, increased by HK$0.19 million over last
year, realizing a profit amounting to HK$14.87 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Jilin Longyuan

Jilin Tongyu wind farm, invested and constructed by the Group, is
installed with 236 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
200,000KW.

An electricity level of 344.51 million kwh was realized during 2009,
increased by 29.51 million kwh over last year. On-grid power
generation amounted to 207.21 million kwh with realized income from
principal activity of HK$181.41 million, increased by HK$10.97 million
over last year, realizing a profit amounting to HK$74.78 million.

e oy

Jiangsu Longyuan

The Jiangsu Yudong wind power field project, invested and constructed
by the Group, is installed with 100 |.5MW wind turbines with a
capacity of 150,000KW.

An electricity level of 344.37 million kwh was realized during 2009,
decreased by 4.64 million kwh over last year. On-grid power
generation amounted to 337.17 million kwh with realized income from

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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principal activity of HK$184.96 million, decreased by HK$2.40 million
over last year, realizing a profit amounting to HK$71.10 million.

Inner Mongolia Xinghe Energine Wind Farm

The total investment of the Inner Mongolia Xinghe Energine wind farm
project, which is under investment and construction, amounts to HK$528
million with an installed capacity of 49,500KW. The first 55 900KW
direct-drive wind turbines, which were installed in 2009, not only provide
circumstances for technological upgrade of 900KW direct-drive wind
turbines, but also a testing base for research and development of 2MW
direct-drive wind turbines.

In May 2009, BEl and China Datong Corporation Renewable Power Co.,
Ltd. entered into a joint venture agreement to establish a jointly
controlled entity, N5 & A& &R #1868 B R 22 &, with shareholding
of 49% and 51% respectively. Its registered capital was HK$105.58 million,
of which HK$51.73 million was to be contributed by BEI It had
completed its company registration. Its tenders in relation to major
equipment, construction and supervision had completed and
construction works had also completed. At the beginning of 2010, wind
turbine installation and testing and on-grid power generation were
carried out.

Business of New Materials

[t is the plan of the Group to extensively use rare-earth materials in four
areas: high-power rare-earth permanent-magnet synchronous generator
and variable-flow drive system applied in wind turbines, rare-earth
permanent-magnet gearless traction machines for elevators, special rare-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

earth permanent-magnet motor for dual military plus civil application and
its drive system and permanent-magnet direct-drive electrical products.

o

Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co., Ltd, controlled and
operated by the Group, is a high-tech enterprise which specializes in
research and development, manufacture, and sales of rare-earth
permanent-magnet gearless traction machines for elevators, with a
registered capital of HK$57 million. The “fii X & JR" branded rare-earth
permanent-magnet gearless traction machines for elevators, and its
driving control system, whose independent research and development
had filled up the technological gap of the domestic gearless elevator
sector; realized external sales of HK$55.62 million in 2009.

As the company responsible for the oversea market of rare-earth
permanent-magnet motor products, Tin Shun Industrial Ltd. (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, “Tin Shun"”) aggressively expanded its
oversea market with continuously strengthening product promotion.

In November 2009, Tin Shun entered into a joint venture contract with
Wuxi New Great Power Electromotor Co., Ltd. to establish Wuxi CASC
Energine Xindali Electricity Co. Ltd. as a subsidiary as to 62.5% and 37.5%
shareholding by the parties respectively, with registered capital of
HK$91.20 million, of which Tin Shun contributed HK$57 million. The total
investment amount was HK$187 million and the subsidiary will be
engaged in development and production of generators, rare-earth
permanent-magnet motors and their drive systems customised for

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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R BREEH  URDKBRREMKME  application in MW direct-drive wind turbines, with the purpose of self-

PEHERRE WS EERK - producing custom-made generators for application in the 900KW and
2MW wind turbines manufactured by Wind Turbine General Assembly
Plant, thereby exercising product cost control through reduction in
reliance on upstream suppliers in the wind turbine supply-chain.
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RESBHEK Business of Automotive Component Parts
AERDREERR Automotive engine management systems

HAZHERI R ERAREREDRERER Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a jointly
FRERRAREABENTEEEELMERM  controlled entity, is a leading provider in the domestic automotive
[ERg - BABEMNMSEEE  RIFMIHE  electronic fuel injection market with a stable market share, ranking the
BERBENE MMM - ERETEMN - L= second nationwide. Its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in
TRELER XTARMENBEAEERE  Europe and North America and supplied to almost all of the domestic
HEEMHE - leading automobile manufacturers.

16  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PERXSRER (KE) HRAS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As a result of the PRC government's implementation of the auto industry
rejuvenation plan in 2009, the company’'s development of new models
and some Euro 4-compliance old models for various customers as well as
an increasing number of orders from new customers procured in recent
years, the jointly controlled entity recorded better-than-budgeted sales
revenue of HK$2,066.43 million with realized profit of HK$247.08 million
in 2009. The company will further speed up its development on new
models and ensure prompt production to boost sales, whilst committing
to enhance collection of accounts receivable to maintain a healthy cash
flow and further reducing its costs to keep its profit ratio.

Automotive sealing systems

Beijing Wanyuan-Henniges Sealing Systems Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled
entity, is a company which specializes in manufacture of medium-to-high
class automotive sealing products in the domestic market. Its quality
control converges with those of international advanced level. The jointly
controlled entity not only realizes the development on and complement
to the medium-to-high class model in the domestic market, but also
attain the standards applicable to Germany, France, the United States,
Japan and South Korea with its products.

The jointly controlled entity recorded better-than-budgeted sales revenue
of HK$343.67 million with realized profit of HK$12.65 million in 2009,
The company will continuously take measures to enhance production
efficiency by controlling its purchasing cost for materials, integrating
logistics management, reducing its reject rate and keeping its expenses
down and through technological innovation, Toyota Production System
("TPS") and Value Analysis / Value Engineering (“VAVE") in order to
consistently realize profit.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEMRERER (KE) FRAT
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Telecommunication Business

The telecommunication products of the Group fully cover various
categories such as GPS mobile terminals, intelligent transport, wireless
communication, television conference and image transmission, GPS
automotive information service platform, bone-conduction hearing aid
telephone products. The Group has become a provider of professional
electronic equipment, communication products and system integration
with extensive influence in the domestic market.
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PROSPECTS

In looking forward, the Group will continue to actively build up its core
component production system and accelerate the progress of domestic
production of wind turbines. By exploiting wind resources of good quality
both onshore and offshore, the Group will step on in pursuit of co-
operation opportunities with other large power generation groups, and
improve the batch production of rare-earth permanent-magnet motors.
[t will also appropriately arrange financing for the Group and take steps
to strengthen its internal management, in order to ensure the sustainable
development of the Group with greater return to its shareholders.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 49 employees (2008: 43
employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 752 employees (2008: 417
employees) in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is
determined according to individual employee’s performance and the
prevailing trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The
Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to
its employees. In addition, discretionary performance bonus is available at
the discretion of the Directors.



#F#R Annual Report 2009

Bt ¥4 [E]
REBEERHEER

RZBEZENF+ZA=+—H £AEEZH
B A1,277,410,0008 T (ZEZENF ¢
761,690,0007% 7t ) + E # 130,000,000 7T
(ZEEN\F : B)RFHEXREFR  EBA
BEEBXER ANEBZEFRHEMSHE
EE AEETEFTENERIAEERY
M E M AR o

R-ZTAFE+-_F=+—H BELER({E
EBBERURRER) B83% (ZEENF ¢
64%) °

EEER

RZETZNF+_A=1+—H AEEXE
97,851,000/ c (ZZEZ /\F : 95,010,000/%
T ZETEERBFRITEAETRENIE
# e

B 5K H B

AREZRBOEBRIEAAREE -
RHAKENELKBRERY TRE - ®YL
BAETIEME TS -

RZZEZ
BB
0 23

AANERLBENBEEREINDEFE
ZENRERARHE -

S NFT A=+ —REAEERES

& o

o

AEEEMm
BRE
EER

5% —T-ZTF=-A=+=H

CEERE SR

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2009 were
HK$1,277,410,000 (2008: HK$761,690,000), of which HK$130,000,000
(2008: Nil) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was fixed-
rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or
other purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31
December 2009 was 83% (2008: 64%).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2009, certain assets of the Group of HK$97,851,000
(2008: HK$95,010,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi.
The Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation
was not significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging
activities.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2009.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year
under review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2010

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 45, professor, obtained Bachelor's degree in
Computer Science and Master's degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively.
He is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC").
He served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director
Assistant and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation
Control of China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT")
between 1988 and 1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in
1997, Director of Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General
Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation in 1999, President
Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since 2002, he has served as Vice President of
CALT, possessing rich experiences in strategic research and business
administration. He was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice-
chairman of the Company on |4 February 2006 and became the
Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 42, is the Executive Director and General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor's degree in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia.
During 1989 to 1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft
System Engineering under the China Academy of Space Technology, the
Comprehensive Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of
China and then the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as
Assistant Engineer, Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the
President cum Deputy Director of the President Office. In 1999, he,
possessing extensive experience in research and management, was
appointed the Executive Director cum Deputy General Manager of China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited. He has been appointed as
Executive Director of the Company since May 1999. He is also a Director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wau Jiang, aged 49, professor, Council Member of China Association
of Chief Accountants and Deputy President of Institute of China
Aerospace Industrial Accountancy. He graduated from National
University of Defense Technology with Master degree in System
Engineering. He worked for a destroyer contingent of the North Sea
Battleship Fleet during August 1983 to July 1989. From August 1989 to
August 2000, he was the Chief of Integrated Planning Division of CALT,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. From September 2000 to
January 2002, he acted as the General Deputy Director of the First
Division, CALT. He then became the Chief of Finance Department of
CALT for 5 years. He has been the Chief Financial Officer of CALT since
February 2007. He has been a Director of Astrotech Group Limited
(“Astrotech”), the controlling shareholder since July 2005. Astrotech is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. He is an expert on scientific and
technological management and financial management with rich
experience in finance, investment and risk management. He was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 20 May
2008.

Mr. Tang Guohong, aged 49, professor, graduated from Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics (“Beihang University”) with
Master's degree in Engineering. He went to Germany in 1987 and
obtained PhD from Max-Planck Institute for Metals Research. He has
served as Director of Staff Office, Deputy Dean and Professor in the
Material Science and Engineering Department of Beihang University,
Deputy General Manager and Administrative Deputy General Manager
with China Aerospace Industry Supply & Marketing Corporation. After
acting as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT, he
now is the President Assistant of CALT with rich experiences in scientific
research, business administration and capital operation. He has been a
Director of Astrotech since July 2005. He was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 February 2006.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS

21



F#R Annual Report 2009

EEREREEASZEAEH

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ENREE 475 BR TR EERKE
A2 DMEIXEHCEEBLTENM - 1991
FE1996F E N E14FTRFT & © 19964F
Z2006F B R EH B A AR
BEER  IRRESNEAFRLERE B
1998F F HEFILRBERIEAAGEL
BRI FERBHMRE  ERE L
EERAEBAE SR - KPN200652A
UHREARRARTESRABEE - 1
2009%3A31H - REEALD A 2 BlAKLE
THHATES HEHZTAASREER
EDHR  GRATAARRZENTES
B2009F4A1HER - BRZAMAAEERS
THEBRARIZES -

BIAEBITES
ITEEXE 705 RRREESTIRZMR
(MEFRARBHREEEIREER) NGE
TEf - 2HETERREZE - H1966F 2
1985%F + BN R ER T2 2 & T A
ZEEMT - HAEREL - REET - BRE
ErEZEIERL  1986FEAFRHRETE
BEREWEZ HE A 7R + 1988F £19904F
K 1990F 21996 F N I EEREHIL A TS
BRaraMrBEsTER R ZaAK
B 1999 F7AERFEE A IEEEARL
KIBMEMEERD - B2003F 12ABESEM
FEREATIESE AR S MER - B2004F
TR FEREHAMKEERNBRAR (—
RELBEARSGMETHRR)BYES -
FTRERTEAHEBHEENREHAET
¥MBERER  HEREEROGCESHSA
LELR - AR HiEPRRRANERE
FRESNBEGEBEENEZHEERER - FR
2008F 1 A23B I E AR A B IEANITE
$o

22  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

PEMAREREE (KE) FRAE

Mr. Li Guang, aged 47, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin
University with Master's degree in Industrial Automation. He had been
the Designer with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996,
Division Chief of Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing
Long March Hi-tech Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as
Deputy General Manager, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry
Corporation successively from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience
in scientific research, product development and business administration.
He was appointed as an Executive Director and a Deputy General
Manager of the Company on 14 February 2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr.
Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and was redesignated as Non-
executive Director on | April 2009 following his appointment as the
Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT. He was also a
Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wang Dechen, aged 70, was graduated with Bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People's
Liberation Army Military Engineering Institute), committee member of the
|0th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the
Assistant Director, Director, Deputy Dean, Vice President, Deputy
Secretary to the Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern China Engineering
College between 1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary of Education of
the Ministry of China Weapon Industry Ministry’s National Mechanical
Committee in 1985. He served as Deputy General Manager of China
North Industries Group in 1988 to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry
Corp.in 1990 to 1996. He served as General Manager and Secretary to
the Party Secretary of China South Industries Group Corp. from July
1999. From December 2003 onwards, he acted as the Senior Consultant
thereof. From July 2004, he was an Independent Director of Aisino Co.,
Ltd.,, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. With rich
experience in strategic management and corporate restructuring, Mr.
Wang is the senior expert in Chinese advanced equipment manufacturing
industry and automotive industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active advocate
and experienced expert in China environmental protection and clean
energy field. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 23 January 2008.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 55, is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the
CPA Australia and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is also a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. She has over |5 years of experience in
corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity and debt
markets. She held various senior positions in international and local banks
and financial institutions and is currently a controlling shareholder and the
Managing Director of each of Asia Investment Management Limited and
Asia Investment Research Limited, both companies are licensed
corporations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").
Ms. Kan is a licensed investment adviser under the SFO and a registered
officer of Lotus Asset Management Ltd. Ms. Kan is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Regal Hotels International Holdings
Limited , G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited, Sunway International
Holdings Limited, Shimao Property Holdings Limited, Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited and Shougang Concord
Technology Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. She was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 23 January 2008.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 45, obtained his Bachelor's degree in
Microbiology and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual
Property from University of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in
England and Wales in 1993 and Hong Kong in 1994. He has been a
partner of an international law firm advising clients on corporate law and
corporate finance law since 2006. Prior to that, he had been a partner of
Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna,
Hong Kong. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 23 January 2008.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zang Wei, senior engineer, obtained his Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering at the Wireless Engineering Faculty and his Master's degree in
Telecommunication and Electronic Engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology. He also obtained PhD in Economics from Remin's University
of China. Since he joined the China Aerospace Industry Department in
1992, he has assumed the Deputy Director with the International
Cooperation Division of China Academy of Space Technology, the Deputy
Director with Assets Management Department, Trading and Investment
Department of CASC, the Director and Managing Director of China
Spacesat Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A share
company), the Director and Senior Vice President of China Spacesat
Technology Co., Ltd (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A share
company) successively. He was appointed as a Deputy General Manager
of the Company on |6 March 2007. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Li You, senior engineer. Graduated from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology with the Bachelor's degree in Electronic Material
and Component Specialized Technology, he has studied courses in
economics, banking, finance and business management of engineering
management research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986,
he successively served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute,
CALT's Political Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development
Department as Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director
in which he was engaged in the special case development, technical
division management, public relation management, and civil assets
integrative management work. In 2003, he served as Deputy Chief of
Investment Management Department in CALT, responsible for CALT's
civil assets planning management, corporate management, capital
restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having possessed
extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management, he was
appointed as a Deputy General Manager of the Company on |6 March
2007. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Lijun. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology with a Bachelor degree with major in Industrial Accounting
and National University of Defense Technology with a Master degree in
Management. He was qualified as an Accountant in PRC in May 1999.
Prior to joining the Company, he was the Chief Accountant with Beijing
CASC Wan Yuan Science & Technology Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CALT. He was appointed as a Financial Controller of the
Company on 10 May 2008. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Au-Yeung Keung, Steve. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Master of Science degree in Electronic
Commerce and Internet Computing, the City University of Hong Kong
with a LLM degree in Chinese and Comparative Law and the University
of London with a LLB degree with honours. He is a fellow member of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. He has extensive
experience in company secretarial practice, accounting, auditing and
financial management in Hong Kong and PRC. Mr. Au-Yeung was
appointed as the Company Secretary and authorized representative of
the Company on | June 2006. He is also the Head of Internal Audit of
the Group.

Mr. Gu Yuan. Mr. Gu graduated from Beijing Economy Academy with a
Bachelor's degree in Economics and Beijing Institute of Technology with a
Master's degree in Business Administration. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Gu
assisted the management of Beijing Wanyuan Industry Corp. to carry on
the company’s daily management work. He participated in strategic
planning and operations on listing of civil assets of CALT. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Gu was one of the leading members in the working team of the
Company's reorganization for CALT, participating in all strategic planning
and implementation work thereof. He was appointed as a General
Manager Assistant on 10 March 2008. He is also a Director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Group.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present the Corporate Governance Report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures and regards preeminent board of
directors, sound internal controls and accountability to all shareholders as
the core elements of its corporate governance principles. The Group
endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in accordance
with rules and regulations, and applicable codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has complied with all principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Code"), which became applicable to the Group
in respect of the year under review, and complied with the relevant code
provisions in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2009,
with the exception of one deviation from the Code Provision A4.| of
the Code which stipulates that Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are
of a fixed term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and
re-election at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in
accordance with the retirement provisions under the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken in this regard to ensure that the Group’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
Code.
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THE BOARD

Board responsibilities and the relationship between board and

management

The Board has the responsibility for management of the Group, which
includes formulating business strategies, and directing and supervising the
Group's affairs, approving interim reports and annual reports,
announcements and press releases of interim and final results, considering
dividend policy, and approving the issue, allotment or disposal or grant of

options in respect of unissued new shares or debentures of the Group.
The overall management of the Group's business is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Group,
including the approval and formulation of all policy matters, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring
the performance of the senior management.

The Board's role is not to manage the business whose responsibility
remains vested with management. The Board and management fully
appreciate their respective roles and are supportive of the development
of a healthy corporate governance culture.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the management. The Board gives clear directions to the
management as to their powers of management, and circumstances
under which the management should report back. All Directors have full
and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances in carrying out their functions and duties after
making a request to the Board at the Group’s expenses.

Each Director is given contact details of the senior management and is
accessible to them for obtaining information and making enquiries when
required, and to receive adequate information, which must be complete
and reliable, in a timely manner.
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Board composition

The Board comprised eight directors including two Executive Directors,
three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors in wake of one Executive Director re-designated as a Non-
executive Director since | April 2009. There was a majority of Non-
executive Directors on the Board, with a wide range of experience and
calibre bringing valuable judgment on issues of strategy, performance and
resources. The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
20 to 25 of this Annual Report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualification.

During the year 2009, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in appointment of a
sufficient number of three Independent Non-executive Directors, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors adheres to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Group has received in writing confirmation of their
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Director
and considers them to be independent of the management and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment. The Board considers that each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors brings his
own relevant expertise to the Board.

The directors are aware that they shall give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group.

The Directors of the Company are unrelated to each other in every
aspect, including financial, business or family.
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Chairman and General Manager

Mr. Han Shuwang is the Chairman and Mr. Wang Xiaodong is the General
Manager of the Group. The roles of the Chairman and the General
Manager are segregated and assumed by two separate individuals to
strike a balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities
are not concentrated on any one individual. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the leadership, Group strategic and Board issues, while
the General Manager has the overall general management responsibilities
for Group operations and development in general.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. There are formal,
considered and transparent procedures for the appointment and removal
of Directors. The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure of
agreeing to the appointment of its members and for nominating
appropriate person for election by shareholders at the AGM, either to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors. In the
nomination process, the Board of Directors makes reference to criteria
including accomplishment and experience in the industry, professional
and educational background and commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest.

The process for re-election of a director is in accordance with the
Group’s Articles of Association, which require that, other than those
Directors appointed during the year, one-third of the Directors for the
time being are required to retire by rotation at each AGM and are
eligible to stand for re-election. For those Directors appointed by the
Board during the year, they shall hold office until the next following AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. The annual report and the
circular for AGM contain detailed information on election of Directors
including detailed biographies of all Directors standing for re-election to
ensure shareholders to make an informed decision on their election.
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Board meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on ad-hoc basis, as
required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total of
nine meetings and at least once quarterly. The composition of the Board
and attendance of the Directors are set out below:
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Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 9/9
Mr. Wang Xiaodong 719
Non-executive Directors

Mr.Wu Jiang 719
Mr.Tang Guohong 719
Mr. Li Guang 9/9

(Executive Director through | April 2009 and
re-designed as Non-executive Director thereon)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr.Wang Dechen 9/9
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 9/9
Mr. Gordon Ng 8/9

For a regular Board meeting, notice of at least fourteen days is given to
all Directors of the Group, who are given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for discussion and are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meeting. An agenda and accompanying document for
discussion are sent to all Directors of the Group at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notices should be given.
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Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by the secretary of the Group and are open for inspection at any
reasonable notice by any Director of the Group. Further, minutes of the
Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the Board Committees
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors of the Group for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
Board meeting is held.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter shall not be dealt with by a Committee
(except an appropriate Board Committee set up of that purpose
pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting) but a Board meeting
shall be held, during which such Director must abstain from voting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction shall be present at such Board
meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Development and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Group's affairs. All
Board Committees of the Group are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
posted on the Group’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances at the
Group's expenses.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

[. No Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration;

2. Recommendations will be made to the Board at least one time
per year of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments which include any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and the remuneration of Non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration; and

3. Review and recommend performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
discussed the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors by
reference to their respective levels of responsibilities and
performance, industry benchmarks, prevailing marketing conditions
and the Group’s financial performance. The Director's fees and any
other reimbursement or emolument payable to the Directors during
the year are disclosed in the Group's financial statements.
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Two committee meetings were convened for discussing the
remuneration policy in the year 2009 and the attendances of each
committee member at the meeting are set out as follows:
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Non-executive Director
Mr.Tang Guohong (Chairman) 212

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 12

(B) Audit Committee

During the year 2009, the Audit Committee consisted of three
Independent Non-executive Directors plus a Non-executive
Director. The written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and
adopted with reference to "A Guide for Effective Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and in accordance with the Code. The Audit Committee is
responsible for the appointment of external auditor, review of the
Group's financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
and accounting practices, internal control and risk management. It is
also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Two committee meetings were convened during the year ended 3|
December 2009 and the attendances of each committee member at
these meetings are set out as follows:
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Non-executive Director

Mr.Wu Jiang 212
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 212
Mr.Wang Dechen 212
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the 2009 interim
financial report and the 2009 annual financial statements. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the internal control systems, and met with
the external auditor to discuss with them the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligation prior to the commencement of
the audit.

Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee consists of two
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and one
Independent Non-executive Director during the year The
Development and Investment Committee is responsible for the
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control covering
all material controls, including financial and operational controls and
risk management functions.

The Board has considered the better allocation of resources and has
instructed the Audit Committee to discuss the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company. As such, the Group
considers that sufficient review to ensure that the Group’s internal
control is in order has been taken and no Development and
Investment Committee meeting was convened during the year
ended 3| December 2009.

The composition of the Development and Investment Committee is
set out in the corporate information on page 2 of this annual report.
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Internal Control

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control and
setting appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group'’s system of internal control.

The Group's internal control system includes a well defined management
structure with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement
of business objectives, so as to safeguard assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, to ensure proper maintenances of books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The Group has an Internal Audit Team which reports directly to the
Audit Committee. The annual audit plan is approved in the Audit
Committee meeting. The Team conducts independent reviews of the
group business operations; reports significant internal control and risk
management issues; and monitors the resolution status.

The Internal Audit Team reviews and assesses the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control by adopting a risk-
based audit approach developed based on the Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission as recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Internal Audit Team adopts the following five components of the
integrated framework to conduct the review assessment:

(1) Control Environment

Control environment sets the tone of organization, influencing
control consciousness of its people. Control environment is the
foundation for other components of the internal control, providing
discipline and structure. Factors of control environment include
ethical values, competence of personnel and direction provided by
the Board.
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Risk Assessment

Risk assessment involves the identification and analysis of relevant
risks to the achievement of the objectives, including risks relating to
the changing economic, industry, regulatory and operating conditions,
as a basis for determining how such risks should be mitigated and
managed.

Control Activities

Control activities are the policies and procedures that help ensure
management directives are carried out and actions are taken to
address risks affecting achievement of objectives.

Information and Communication

Information and communication comprises effective processes and
systems to identify, capture and communicate operational, financial
and compliance-related information in a form and timeframe that
enable the staff to carry out their responsibilities.

Monitoring

Monitoring is a process that assesses the adequacy and quality of the
internal control system's performance over time. This is accomplished
through ongoing monitoring activities, separate evaluation or a
combination of two. Deficiencies in internal controls should be
reported to senior management, the Audit Committee, or the Board.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, have conducted an annual

review covering all material controls, including financial, operational and

compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Board also considered that there is adequate resources, qualifications

and experience of staff in the Group to monitor the Group’s accounting

and financial reporting functions. The Company will ensure such matters

are under review by the Board periodically and training programmes will

be provided to the staff whenever necessary to ensure their knowledge

and experience are adequate to discharge their duties.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has adopted the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix |10 to the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of external auditor of the Group, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 46 to 48 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT") was appointed as the external auditor
of the Group by the shareholders at the last AGM of the Group. The
remuneration to DTT recognised for the year ended 31 December 2009
was set out as follows:

FRAMRERBZER Fees relating to services rendered
FHET
HK$'000
Ei R Audit services 2,800
FETRS Non-audit services 350
3,150

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and
activities. These include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high
level of accountability and to keep informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board
Committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer any questions from the shareholders.
A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in respect of each
issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of Directors.
An AGM circular was distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM (at least 10 clear business days in the
case of all other general meetings), setting out details of each proposing
resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant information.

Pursuant to the latest amendment of the Listing Rules, all general
meetings of the Company to be conducted by poll from | January 2009,
the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting ensure that an
explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding voting by
way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Group and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’
meeting thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group’s announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 49.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the vear.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During 2009, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in
place.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2009 were HK$1,903,472,000 (2008: HK$ 1,688,284,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaodong

Non-executive Directors
Mr.Wu Jiang
Mr.Tang Guohong
Mr. Li Guang
(Executive Director through | April 2009
and re-designed as Non-executive Director thereon)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr.Wang Dechen

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Gordon Ng

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date
they were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but
subject to retirement and re-election under the Company's Articles of
Association.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice and Mr. Gordon Ng by
rotation, shall retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with the Article |16 of the Company's Articles of
Association and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in
the register required to be maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise to be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™).

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the period was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or
their associates (as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, so far as is known to the Directors, the
persons/entities had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group and the amount of each of such person’s interest
in such securities or in any options in respect of such capital were as

follows:
igrig - = BREBDL
=L 287 Number of  Percentage of
Name Capacity shares  shareholding
(K1)
(Note 1)
HEMAREEELR ([Fhe]) BEXES AR (HE2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
CASC Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
mEEFH NS RMH R ([AER]) BHAEXESARER (FE3) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
CALT Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 3)
Astrotech Group Limited ERBERA 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%

(TAstrotech])
Bt -
1. TLUERERBEHZEE -

2. AR RYEE2649,244,0008 K1) 2 #
@ BEBB AR 100%E 5

3. AstrotechY A&z 2EMB AR - Bt
K &5 BT 45 5 A Astrotech T 2 2B fp 2

s -

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Beneficial owner

Note:
I. The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100%
of the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2009,
had any interest or short position in the shares of underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group in any options in respect of such
capital.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the transaction below which
constitute non-exempted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules:

FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

[t was announced on 29 December 2009 that two subsidiaries of the
Company, Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture Co.
Ltd. (“IM Turbine Manufacture”) and Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Material Co. Ltd. (“IM Composite Material”) entered into a
framework agreement whereby IM Composite Material is to supply wind
turbine blades as to 900KW and 2MW to IM Turbine Manufacture from
time to time in accordance with the terms of the Framework Agreement
for the three financial years ending 31 December 2011 (“Framework
Agreement”).

Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to 41.03%
shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials & Processing
Technology, which is a subsidiary of the Company major controlling
shareholder of CALT, IM Composite Material is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the
said more than 10% shareholding. The supplies of wind turbine blades by
IM Composite Material under the Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the maximum purchase costs
payable by IM Turbine Manufacture under the Framework Agreement for
the three years ending 3| December 2011 amount to RMB41,160,000,
RMB86,420,000 and RMB 176,780,000 respectively.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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The total purchase costs recognized and payable by IM Turbine
Manufacture pursuant to purchase agreement of 30 December 2009
under the Framework Agreement amounted to RMB40,425,000 for the
year 2009 which was within the annual cap of RMB41,160,000.

Pursuant to Rule [4A.38 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Board of Directors engaged the auditor of the
Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group to assist the Directors to
evaluate the transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(i) have not exceeded the relevant cap amount for the financial year
ended 31 December 2009 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 December 2009 and circular of the Company
dated 15 January 2010.

The Independent Board Committee, comprising all Independent Non-
executive Directors, all of whom have no material interest in the
Framework Agreement has been formed to advise the Independent
Shareholders on the terms of the Continuing Connected Transactions.
Partners Capital International Limited has been appointed as the
Independent Financial Adviser to advise the Independent Board
Committee and the Independent Shareholders on the terms of the
Continuing Connected Transactions and the Annual Caps.

The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board of Directors: the terms of the Continuing Connected Transactions
and the advice of the Independent Financial Adviser have been reviewed
by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transaction have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than
terms available from independent third parties; and
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(i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
Framework Agreements governing such Continuing Connected
Transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole;

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 85.10% of
the Group’s turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 47.42% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 3| December 2009, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 50.63% of
the Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier accounted for approximately 25.29% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers
or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2010
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMXERER (RE) ERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings)Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 146,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.
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BIRMETREE
Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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BIZMERES
Independent Auditor’s Report

BER Opinion

AOIRBLEMGEMBRREBIEEEHMBR  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair

SEABEERATHRE BEELEBEN_ZFZ  view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 3| December 2009 and of

NE+ZA=+—BZHBMHAR EEE  the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

HEZBLLZEFRBRESKE  ABEESE  with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

RGPz BREERMEERS - prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EgeAER ST Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
HESA Certified Public Accountants
B Hong Kong
—E-TF=ZfA=-+=H 23 March 2010

48 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_FTAFF A=+ —AILEE

For The Year Ended 31December 2009

2009 2008
i TEx T
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
X Turnover 5 663,373 184,206
88 BK AR Cost of sales (584,259) (176,391)
E 7 Gross profit 79,114 7815
H g A Other income 7 19,333 13,680
HE R D #HKA Selling and distribution expenses (20,437) (10516)
THER Administrative expenses (117,637) (92814)
REVMELAFE Increase (decrease) in fair value of
12 fn Of ) investment property 3,420 (2,280)
g o] L Bk & 2 ] Recovery of fully impaired receivable from
2 EUR AR KR an associate 11,952 —
i E /N Allowance for amounts due from
RIEEE associates = (17:837)
ISR Finance costs 8 (53,051) (34,069)
FE (Bt & DR ¥ E Share of results of associates 25,379 30,631
FE 15 SR 42 Share of results of jointly
EREE controlled entities 74,630 41,048
B (H#R) Impairment loss reversed (recognised)
RERZEGEE in respect of interests in jointly
RIEEE controlled entities 19 55,189 (424,165)
BR B0 A& A (B 18) Profit (loss) before taxation 71,892 (488,507)
1518 Taxation 9 (7,091) (7421)
REZRM (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 10 70,801 (495928)
Hp2EWA - Other comprehensive income:
NEREEZNEYR Exchange difference arising on translation
EEZERZHE to the Group's presentation currency - 130,939
FAZEKA Total comprehensive income
(A%) B (expense) for the year 70,801 (364,989)
FRUTALEEEF (BEB) © Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of the Company 68,033 (499,626)
DY R R Minority interests 2,768 3,698
70,801 (495,928)
China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

PEMRERER (KE) FRAH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_TENFL _A=+—HIEE
For The Year Ended 31December 2009

2009 2008
i TER TEL
NOTE HK$°000 HK$000
AT AL Total comprehensive income
EEGERA (FX) 2% (expense) attributable to:
ARAERA Owners of the Company 68,033 (369,029)
DR RE S Minority interests 2,768 4,040
70,801 (364,989)
SkAEN (BE) —EXK Earnings (loss) per share - Basic 13 HKI.86 centsi&fll  HK(13.79) centsi# L

50 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-FENET=A=+—A
At 31 December 2009

2009 2008
i3 TEx FAL
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
*RBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment property 14 23,940 20520
n% - BERZME Property, plant and equipment 5 388,690 309,261
KENE  BERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

Fxftzge plant and equipment 15 1371 148,643
HE Goodwill 16 9,252 8,548
EVEE Intangible assets 17 - —
REE R B Interests in associates 8 227,280 211826
RAREHER 2 BE Interests in jointly controlled entities 19 1,054,117 949,695
THRTHER Fixed bank deposits 20 91,200 —

1,801,856 1,648,493
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 2 76,828 55,240
EoREEKR Trade and other receivables 2 239,448 205,514
AN Amounts due from associates 23 212,583 2419
BERRTER Pledged bank deposits 24 97,851 41599
EHRTHER Fixed bank deposits 20 57,000 —
ROBEGELRRE Bank balances and cash 2% 643,613 212,465
1,327,323 517,237
RBAE Current liabilities
EHRAMEMNK Trade and other payables 25 194,739 119,287
R HE Taxation payable 350 —
EREEARR Amounts due to associates 3 1,856 452
R—ERIBIER Borrowings — amount due within one year 26 285,000 170,600
481,945 291,339
RBEEFH Net current assets 845,378 225,898
EEAEARDAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,647,234 1,874,391
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
R—FRIBZEH Borrowings — amount due after one year 26 992,410 591,090
ERLHE Deferred taxation 27 10,026 7389
1,002,436 598,479
1,644,798 1,275,912

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

PEMRERER (KE) FRAH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZFEFENF+Z-H=1+—H
At 31 December 2009

2009 2008
ik TEx TAL
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
EXRGAE Capital and reserves

R Share capital 28 396,900 362,400
i Reserves 1,135,832 836,429

ARABEREA Equity attributable to equity owners
iR of the Company 1,532,732 1,198,829
DR RER Minority interests 112,066 77083
EnaE Total equity 1,644,798 1275912

FIRE49Z 146 E v iR & B MK - JyESE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 146 were approved

ER_Z-ZFE=ZA-_t=BHERERE " and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2010
THATESREREE and are signed on its behalf by:

BRE IBR

Han Shuwang Wang Xiaodong

HITEE HITEE

Executive Director Executive Director

52 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PERXSRER (KE) BRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_FTAFF A=+ —AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2009

LINGE LN 3
Attributable to owners of the Company
T _
EftRf 2REE HY
RE  BHRE KOEE Propery ENEE EZEEE A REER
Share  Special Share revaluation Exchange  General — mulated BE  Minority 4%
ca\pitil reserve pren\\iuT reserve  reserve reserve Igsse_s T°t3| intel\fesis Totgl
Tar Tén ThEr TEx Thn TEx TErx TExr TEr  TiEn
HK$000 HK$'\OOO HKE000 — HKS000 — HK$000 HK;’\OOO HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
(Wit1) (Hit2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
RZZZN\§-A-A At | January 2008 362400 754 251771 3% 15622 4772 (1195660) 1567858 3985 1571843
KER (BR)EA (os) proft for te e - - - - - C R (BN I o)
HEER] G- Buchange difference arising on
LESEE transation to presentation currency - - - S 17 - - 10 Mo 13099
KEERE Total comprehensive income
YA R 4% (expense) for the year - - - - 3w — (96 (GO0 40 (6
KEHBAFR &N Additon on acquistion of
(H31) subsidiries (note 31) - - - - - - - — 66208 64,208
hEAR Capital contribution from
bARR minorty sharefolders of
fE a subsicery - - - - - - - - 285 285
| Trnser - - - - — e ) - - -
RZZZNETZR At 31 December
=t-A 2008 362400 7554 151771 3% 146,219 19834 (1700348) 1198829 71083 1275912
KERRHRZE Proft for the year and total
WAL comprefensive income
for the year - - - - - - 66,033 66,033 1768 70801
Bk (W) lsue of new shares (note 28) 34500 - M50 - - - — 7600 — 77600
BhRHER Transaction costs arbutzble to
RARA isue of shares - — (010 - - - - (10130 - (1030
HEAR Capital contribution from
LYRE minorty sharefolders of
ik a subsidiary = = = = = = = = 38762 38761
GHEEGEUES Dividend pad to minorty interess - - - - - - - - A — )
YEkE Acquiston of additonal nterest
RAzEMER ina subsicery - - - - - - - - (83%) %)
gg Transter - - - - - 319 (31%) - - -
RoZENE At 31 December
tZA=1-H 2009 396900 17554 2483141 399 46,219 B4 (1635505 1530732 [12066 1644798
fitat Note:

1. AEEZENREBEAQREZRTRAEER
AARFBANBAREEATRABEZZE
RREAEER—ANEFENAT+—RETE
i i E A A S % 2 8 $58116,025,00075
=«

2. TRRBEVERERTEARLRME ([HE])
MNBARBENEEEEBER()VETLEE
EBHNEEES -

I. The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the aggregate
amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred from other reserves pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation on || August 1997.

2. Included in general reserve is reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior years' losses or (ii)
expand production operations.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—FFNFT_A=1—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$000
REEH Operating activities
B B0 A& A (B 18) Profit (loss) before taxation 77,892 (488,507)
SRS BIAEL R Adjustments for:
F B KA Interest income (3,288) (4971
FERAX Interest expenses 53,051 34,069
B ERNRRE Share of results of associates (25,379) (30,631)
BHARZEHEBES Share of results of jointly
controlled entities (74,630) (41,048)
EEEHH Amortisation of intangible assets —_ 4,900
ME BERRBZTE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 28,120 9,627
(B @) R 00 LA 42 Impairment loss (reversed) recognised in
EREDSCRERBR respect of interests in jointly
controlled entities (55,189) 424,165
1g 2] E U Bk & 2 ) Recovery of fully impaired receivable
2 BURL B & 58 from an associate (11,952) —
BEWME 2 AFE L) &> (Increase) decrease in fair value
of investment property (3,420) 2,280
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts 5,538 [1,44]
FEU Bt & A R R R B Allowance for amounts due
from associates — 17,837
REFERE Allowance for obsolete inventories 6,349 12,738
HEWE BER Loss on disposal of property, plant
R E#E and equipment 68 276
NGRS -l Effect of foreign exchange rate
BYHo¥E changes on intercompany
balances — 1,810

54  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PERXSRER (KE) BRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

NOTE 2009 2008
if3 FET TET
HK$’000 HK$:000
HEASEDNLEED Operating cash flows before
Rens movements in working capital (2,840) (46,014)
FRZEM Increase in inventories (27,937) (10,126)
Eﬂ%&ﬁi\@r”yﬁzi m Increase in trade and other receivables (74,796) (37811
JEA B = 1A Increase in amounts
23 due from associates (83,641) (1976)
B2 REMRAR Increase (decrease) in trade and
23800 R ) other payables 76,870 (11,098)
FERBERAREM(RD) Increase (decrease) in amounts
due to associates 404 (2,204)
ARE=EZRS Cash used in operations (111,940) (109,229)
BERMEH Income taxes paid (4,104) (2,178)
AREEERD AR FR Net cash used in operating
activities (116,044) (111,407)
BREED Investing activities
TEH R AT 7 AR A Investments in fixed bank deposits (148,200) —
BB 2B Increase in pledged bank deposits (97,851) (40,199)
BENX  BERRME Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (74,053) (67,586)
ERIARREHNER Capital injection in a jointly
controlled entity (51,732) —
REBERRZRE Investments in associates (14,820) (58,082)
BB - BB RR Deposits paid for acquisition of
Fxfizize property, plant and equipment (7,377) (34,072)
KRN B R ARIMES Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary (1,540) —
BARZEHERRRZBEE Dividend received from a jointly
controlled entity 112,453 252,28
R ERRTER Release of pledged bank deposits 41,599
BEE D AMERZ RS Dividend received from associates 24,745 7,806
B F & Interest received 3,288 4971
WENX - BERREMER Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 508 4,322
BEHBAE - MBEEREZ Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
ReRReSEY and cash equivalents acquired 31 — (5,990)
BERRAEERN Repayment of loan to associates — 37,696

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEMEXERER (KE) ARAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

&3k Annual Report 2009

2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$000
(AR)RERERED Net cash (used in) from
ZREFRE investing activities (212,980) 101,147
MEEY Financing activities
i ABER New loans raised 901,780 413,076
BIIHRG 2 FERE Proceeds from issue of new shares 276,000 —
MBARLERREE Capital contribution from minority
shareholders of a subsidiary 38,762 2,850
BEEXR Repayment of loans (386,060) (360,137)
ERHE Interest paid (54,469) (19,953)
BOOMROMEEZRX Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of new shares (10,130) —
XA DB RE SRS Dividend paid to minority interests (5,711) —
METBMEEZESTE Net cash from financing activities 760,172 35,836
HekReEEY Net increase in cash and
0% FE cash equivalents 431,148 25,576
HNEEXZSH 2 ZE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — 12,018
FNzHeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 212,465 174,871
FRZAGRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
(RITEHRRRE) of the year, representing bank
balances and cash 643,613 212,465

56 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. —BEH

ARAA—FKRAESHESTMK L 2B
BRAR ERODREBBMERZAER
DA (THERFT]) BT o KRBz B
§% 2 7] & Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech]) (—FHRKEBAERRAHS
EMKILZRA]) - FHAKRRE66.75%
2z o Astrotechfl F Bl A BT R AT 1 3¢
B ([A&iBE]) 2EHA - PEMARE
SERA([hMme]) EREEER NG
Pei AR R R 2 RISERADT « R
RASERARBRFREARLNME ([H
BRI 2B -

ARRAMPERMIREBLEEL R
WHEBERAFR L RAEH— -

AEBzNEEERBARYE  MEAH
BHRRAUNETZS - EZRA/ADA
RARDE - BIOREIMED - AX
HOREEREREE  ETEMA/AE
HZ2NEE -

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"). Its immediate holding company
is Astrotech Group Limited (“Astrotech™), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which holds 66.75% interest in the
Company. Astrotech is wholly owned by China Academy of Launch
Vehicle Technology (“CALT"). China Aerospace Science & Technology
Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of the
Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are entities established in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRCY).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the

annual report.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB") while the
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with
the shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors

are located.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZEZENEf—_FA=+—HIEE

2. ERHMAREEBIEEY
BREER((FEMGR
& #AI])
WAEE  ARERER TIIAE S S

miog (BRSO BhzERA
RGBT ER - BRI R ([ RE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

ERTREMBREER])

Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

BRGHENE 1R BBEERZZT HKAS | (Revised 2007)  Presentation of financial statements
(Z2ZLFHE)

BEREMERE2LE EEXK HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)  Borrowing costs
(Z2ZLFHE)
BREGHERENT, BRERELZEE HKAS 32 & | Puttable financial instruments and
EEACHES) SRMIA (Amendments) obligations arising on liquidation
EREMBREERN RHBAR - ARE HKFRS | & HKAS 27 Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
FIRRBEG HEBLHERT (Amendments) jointly controlled entity or associate
ERIE 275 ZREHE
CHES)

ERAMBREEN BERGRITE HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting conditions and cancellations
25 (B K)

EREMBRELER EFEERIAZ HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Improving disclosures about financial
F79% (BFTE) RE instruments

BRMBHREEDN LENE HKFRS 8 Operating segments
F 85

EE (BRMBRSE HAXTEIA HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 & Embedded derivatives
Z2EZE®) HKAS 39
-REFHRR (Amendments)
B g £A
F395% (BFTK)

A (BRMEHRSE FPEHAE HK(IFRIC) - INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes
2EBZE®)
-REE13%

58 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. ERHEREETEEM
BRERN(TEFEMBR

HEEH]) @)

5 (BB BRSE
#EBZE9)

- 2BE15%
A5 (BBRHBRSE
ZEZEY)

- ZEBZ16%
5 (BB BRSE
#EZE9)

- ZEZF18%
BB BREES

(BET )

BEMBREEA
(BFI %K)

FHERRGZ

RENEBREFE
ZE

REFBREE

RZZENEHEMHE
BHBREER
Wi R=ZFTN
FtA—RHgzHk
RBEMFEESRREE
M2 BBRBRE
A BB 55 2 (5 F]
BR 4D

RZZZNERHE
BEBEHENE
395 80F% 2 (B 7]
MEBRBRE R
Bl B

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 15 Agreements for the construction of real

estate
HK(IFRIC) - INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation

HK(IFRIC) - INT 18 Transfers of assets from customers

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS
5 that is effective for annual periods

beginning or after | July 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
in relation to the amendment to

paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2. FERMBEREETEEN 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

BREELN([FEHBR
HEEH]) @)

BRIXFAAESN  RAFTLEBR R
EMBRERNHAEERE T HEX
BEEHTBRZEAMBHERLEERX

=784
FE o

ERE2IRBEBZHREETEEM
Bs L

BRETERE 1R (—EELFLEET)
BEHELZ 25

BEQHENE 1R (CETLFLER)
SINZEMBERE (BEEER] MR
RER)  URMBBREARARARE
@J o

EEHBRE R FFEESE

FEUGREENESRARBER 8§
HAREZRSRATENHHZH (R
Hi5ke) - ThEH MEFISEE  HEA
ERHEEEHEERNRLD -

60 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PEAXSERER (KE) HRAS

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and

disclosure only

HKAS | (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements

HKAS | (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and changes in

the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a redesignation
of the Group's reportable segments (see note 6) and changes in the
basis of measurement of segment profit or loss, segment assets and

segment liabilities.



£$R Annual Report 2009

& & B 5 4R 3R B B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. ERFHBEREETEEM
BHR&EER ([HFARER
HEEH]) @)

RERBEER FUBRAZHRE
BIIEEMBREER

BRI ERELT (—FELFRE
A ERERA

RBAEEE  AEB 22 RERK
B HESAENCEREEEREEMN
MEEXRARBELEERAABRIL -
BRGEAFELRE (ZETLFLE
uﬂhﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmvﬁzhﬁzﬁﬁﬁ
FIZHEEMBR - RABTEGHERE
Bﬁﬁ_YYtEM@ﬂM§’$%I@
SITHBEHBR  ERLMEZERE
ERA  EREEBEERAR —I
Poﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%%A;ﬁszwﬂ:
tiwfﬂdmﬂﬁhmﬁ%fﬁm
gﬁﬁ TRZETAF-A—BHZ
BRABRERLEERBEENBERA
AREETHEHBRRANEMIE=F
ZNAE—A—B ZeHRREETE
SIMESBAEFEHE -

RAFE  A&BYEEMAENCE
EWKZ’—\EWEF o At RMEB
S EAF2LR (T LELED R
AU EZEARERBEE MR

BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported results

and/or financial position

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing costs

In previous years, the Group has an accounting policy that expensed
all borrowing costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset when they were
incurred. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option previously
available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The adoption
of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group changing its
accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing costs as part of the
cost of the qualifying asset. The Group has applied the revised
accounting policy to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for
which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after |
January 2009 in accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS
23 (Revised 2007). As the revised accounting policy has been applied
prospectively from | January 2009, this change in accounting policy
has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect of

prior accounting periods.

In the current year, the Group did not have any qualifying asset to
capitalise the borrowing costs. Therefore, the adoption of HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) has not had any impact on Group's financial results

and position for the current period.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued but

o are not yet effective.
ERMBREEDN EANKBREENE HKFRSs (Amendments)  Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
CCHEN BB =% improvements to HKFRSs 2008’
TNEREUKR
EEABE 2 — 7
f
EREMBRELER —TTNFERRE HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
(BFTK) BEEQ 2 B2
BREMERF 4R BEALRES HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosure®
(&)
BRGHERNE R HaRENHBERR HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial
(&) statements'
BREHERNENRR #HRzHE HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Classification of right issues*
CCHEY)
BEGHEREIN AEREPER HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible hedged items'
CCHEY)
BEMBREEDN  BRRBEZIBINE HKFRS | (Amendment)  Additional exemptions for first-time
F195% (BETAK) %2 adopters’
BEMBRELED  BEMBREEYNE HKFRS | (Amendment)  Limited exemption from comparative
F15% (BT K) TR ERERE HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time
RELBHTZE adopters®
&%
BEMBREER KERSEEROLY HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group cash-settled share-based
25 (BETX) ANRRH° payments transactions’
BEMBREERN  RBAH HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations'
F35% (BEFT)
BREMBHREER eRIAT HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’
F 95
B (ERREHRE SEELBRZEMN HK(IFRIC) - INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
2BZE9) TIR® (Amendment) requirement®
—REE14%
CCHES)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners'
HK(IFRIC) - INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instrument?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009.

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after

| July 2009 and | January 2010, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | February 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 1.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after | July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent's ownership interest in a

subsidiary.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from | January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect

the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to the classification of
leasehold land. The amendments will be effective from | January
2010, with earlier application permitted. Before the amendments to
HKAS 17, lessees were required to classify leasehold land as
operating leases and presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments require the
classification of leasehold land to be based on the general principles
set out in HKAS |7, that are based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS |7 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group's leasehold

land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations

will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the investment property, which is
measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out

below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those

used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.
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3. XEGIHEK @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
GERBEE (B Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary is
recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost over the Group's additional interest in the net
book value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities recognised.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment

loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. FEEEHBE @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. XEGIHEK @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
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Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where a group transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity.

Revenue recoghnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders'’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into account of

their estimated residual values, using the straight line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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3. XEGIHEK @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight line basis.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Other government grants are recognised as revenue over the
periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of loans and receivables
are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from associates, bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and amounts due from associates, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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3. XEGIHEK @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

&MIR (F)

TRABEKER

AKEETZeMAGREETIATIR
BRERZHEERSRARARKRET
AZEENE -

BRETADNEHASEEENRAMER
EREFERNGES EMAR -

ERFEL

ERMZANFEESREBEZHHERA
PREBHHREIMNEX L 2T - B
FRAE DR RAIRERE 2 REFEL
A ARRENRREREBIREREF
R HBEHE (HEE) BRTEZA

K o

-

MEXHZRERAEEERER -

THERE

CRABERRESREMEMNS - BN
RERBRRERTDERRAERMNE
ERCEBIHKARGTE -

KETA

ARAETZRELATDREWAEK
B (HBRERBTHAR) AR -

80 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
PERXSRER (KE) BRAE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual

interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are

also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group entities which are stated at
functional currency of the respective group entity other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the exchange

reserve).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period, are

discussed below.

Estimated impairment of jointly controlled entities

Determining whether interests in jointly controlled entities are
impaired requires estimation of their recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculation by
estimating the Group's share of the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the jointly controlled
entities, using discount rates which reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
jointly controlled entities. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying
amounts of interests in jointly controlled entities are
HK$1,054,117,000 (2008: HK$949,695,000). Details of the

recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2009, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$9,252,000 (2008:
HK$8,548,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 6.
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HE—FFNFT_A=1—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

4, FEIAEEMZEEKRE 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(%)
fis 5T B8 5 B o 0 e P MG BB 2 A B R R B

EERBERETREERR  A5EE
EZRHEARASTE - BEBELE
BRZEE ERERREREEZRE
ERNE (NN BARAEZERF
K)REZBFRRRERE (FREX
EECZAREEER RENEETE -
WARERRSRELREBEH RS - Al
AEEELAEARERE -R_TZN
F+-_B=+—8 BHRUAKREK
ERARCREZEEES B A
50,770,000 © ( = & T J\ #F
41,910,000/ 7t ) (%M%%E&Eﬁﬁéﬁ
144,202,000 7. (= E T N\ F :
138,664,000/ 7T) ) % 212,583,000/ 7T
(ZZZ)\F : 2,419,000 7T) (M
Bt & 2 )R (E E518.23,383,000/8 7T (=&
Z J\4 : 35,335,000/ 7C) ) °

ARERAFENH L EEHFMT

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and amounts

due from associates

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2009, the carrying amounts of trade receivables and amounts due
from associates are HK$50,770,000 (2008: HK$41,910,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$144,202,000 (2008:
HK$138,664,000), and HK$212,583,000 (2008: HK$2,419,000), net
of impairment loss for an associate of HK$23,383,000 (2008:
HK$35,335,000) respectively.

. TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

EmiEE Sales of goods 298,135 161,931
HERBRGES Sales of electricity from operation of

2B N wind power field 31,543 3,985

HER N BB Sales of wind energy

7 related products 314,565 —

PR e A Revenue from services 19,130 18,290

663,373 184,206
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AEBRWE _TTNF-A-BEL
BONBEAUBRELNFESHK[LES
Bl BREUBRELEAESHRR —RKE
A RENAEETIECERRER
REDEERIERFAGERREAMTE
HENASEARBI 2 EBREER
BAEEN B ER AEEZFER
BEARECBIIRATEF - R - R
KR (FELHERFE 1455 - HEER)
B BB K[ % B WA D
BEBRNE) - B AEEZFE
BENAREBDE -

REF  MINBREETEHEEREAR
SELESBRENEM RIBHORE
BEEANER 2HREETNRERRE
RER([BEXBERER])  EFE
BEAN BHNEEEBERHLTERER)
BTN - AW MATESHENE
B DREERHEERNEEHEBE
- HERBRGEECEN BHER
DERLERER MHEZRENE
% REERAERKRATML - BAH

EBANER BHERBERERLES
BEEREANCETSR/ILIR - MRIE
BREUBRELENESTAEANFEHEE

PR—PEHR BERTEZRR/AEA
EnBHBETERER - REZEM
BHEENESREN D EAEEARSH
BUBHAFERRAEFERSNRE
EREATE -

BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with effect
from | January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance. The chief
operating decision maker of the Group has been identified as the
Executive Directors. In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14,
Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two sets of
segments (business and geographical) using a risks and returns
approach. In the past, the Group's primary reporting format was

business segments.

In prior years, primary segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of the types of goods supplied and services
provided by the Group’s operating divisions (i.e. communication
products, global positioning system application products (“ITS"),
broadband wireless access, wind energy business and REPM
products). However, information reported to the Executive Directors
is analysed by manufacture and sales of wind energy related
products, sales of electricity from operation of wind farm,
manufacture and distribution of REPM products, trading of chemical
materials and telecommunication business for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. Financial
information in relation to the sales of communication products, ITS
and broadband wireless access are not separately reported but
grouped together under telecommunication business operating
segment under HKFRS 8 as the Executive Directors consider that
the said types of products are of electronic telecommunication
products. The redesignation of the Group's reportable segment
under HKFRS 8 has no material impact on the results reported in

the current and prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. #EEH » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
AEERRBEBIXRLEITRE S The Group currently organises its operations into five operating
B HARRAEEMRENARATIER segments. They represent five major lines of businesses engaged by
BeoAREDBZEIEXBNOT the Group. The principal activities of the operating segments are as

follows:
RO%EE - RERNEEHRH Wind Energy Related ~ —  Manufacture and sales of wind
R E @ EmzHERKE Products energy related products
ER R - HEXRERGEEL Operation of Wind —  Sales of electricity from operation of
BN Farm wind farm

BLIERER — HERDHETRE REPM Products —  Manufacture and distribution of
B elevator motors

MHES - EIMBES Trading of Materials —  Trading of chemical materials

EES - FE HERDH Telecommunication —  Development, manufacture and
BAEm 8 Eﬁ? Business distribution of communication
WMAGEm  BE products, ITS, broadband systems,
i RBREM equipment and accessories

XEBRFBZENEZER - BEH Information regarding these segments is presented below. The
Fﬁziﬁzzn BEGEREINFEEE segment results reported for the prior period have been restated to
FHEHRELEINEBRZMRTE ° conform with the requirements of HKFRS 8.
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SERERES

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ARERBEDBZEREREEIN

m

BE-_ETNFT-A=1T-HLEE

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by

reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

DL
BBER B5EE #t EREL
Wind Energy ~ Operation BfiER HREA Telecom-
Related of Wind REPM Tradingof ~ munication i} 8
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Elimination  Consolidated
T T T T T T T
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000
EER TURNOVER
HINEE External sales 353,954 31543 96,140 70842 90283 (39.389) 663373
%5 RESULT
PEEE Segment resut (6279) 47571 (4083) 490 (341) (12669) 21,605
AEAE Undllocated
RAER corporate expenses (47936)
AEAE Unallocated
A other income 5540
B Finance costs (53051
RENZ Increase in far vlue of
NFEEM investment property 340
ABEREHER  Reversa of mpaiment
ZAEBBEE  lossinrespectof
interest in a jointly
controlled entity 55,189
FEfE KR H Share of results of oinly
EE%E controlled entities 93,125
B B AR A Proft before taxation 77892
China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. 7E-&H8 @ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEWMBRES (B) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

BE_ZTTNFF+ZA=+—HIEFE  For the year ended 3| December 2008

Wk
EBER B5EE Bt LEES
Wind Energy ~ Operation BdER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of - communication i} g8
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Elimination  Consolidated

T&n T&n T&n T&n TR TR TERL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

EXE TURNOVER

HMAE External seles — 3985 35,184 41774 9763 - 184206
ES | RESULT
RS Segment resuft (1428) 35332 148 606 (53484) - (164%3)
AEHE Unalocated

RAEMA  conporate expenses (49,788)
AEHE Unallocated

EmMA  otherincome 5007
BIAAR  Finance costs (34069)
RENZE Decrease in fair value of

RTFERD  investment property (2280)
FEUREE & A Alowance for amounts

FEBE  duefrom assodtes (17837)
BEEERES Imparment loss recognised

EEZEHR inrespect ofinferests n

HEBB  jonty controled enties (f24165)
FEAE ERIEH] Share of resufs ofjointy

Y controlled entities 47118
BRRABE Lo before tavation (488507)
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. E-88w

SERBRES (F)

DEEBIRS D ERIE £ K KRR A
wF (B18) - TRETE D A8 B
A BRENEAFEKZKER  RE
EERHARAEFHEEER ZREEBSE
BE - EEAREREEES  URK
BOMEMBARKESEATER -
MEETERKAREFTEH S o BIHH &
N T M 25,379,000 T (Z BT )\ F
30,631,000/ 7T) K FE (& £ R 12 5 B 82 &5
5 18,495,0008 T (Z T T N\ & -
6,070,000 L) AEEEHRE D - W)
RERAERDPBEYTEMS - AA
SERTEZZROAE -

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment results represent the profit (loss) before taxation earned or
incurred by each segment, excluding finance costs, fair value gain or
loss on investment property, impairment loss and reversal of
impairment loss in respect of interest in a jointly controlled entity,
share of results of jointly controlled entities which cannot be
allocated, unallocated other income and corporate expenses such as
central administration costs and directors’ salaries. Share of profit of
associates of HK$25,379,000 (2008:HK$30,631,000) and share of
loss of jointly controlled entities of HK$18,495,000
(2008:HK$6,070,000) were allocated to reportable segments. This is
the measure reported to the Group's Executive Directors for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. #E-&H »w 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
STHEEERER Segment assets and liabilities
AEBRGRENECEERABEA T The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
I reportable segment:

R-BBNFE+=A=1+—-H At 31 December 2009
L
REER B5EE it EEES
Wind Energy  Operation EHER WHESZ  Telecom-
Related of Wind REPM  Trading of munication ge
Products Farm  Products  Materials Business Consolidated

TEL TETL TEL TEL TEL TETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 761,104 478,386 83,563 21,847 [ 14,666 459,566
RERZH Interests in jointly

EE ER controlled entities 978,114
RESE Unallocated

DABE corporate assets 691,499
RREERA Consolidated total assets 3,129,179
8% LIABILITIES
PEER Segment liabilities 471,089 96518 31,944 32,081 61573 643,205
FESR Unallocated

AAAE corporate liabilities 841,176
NRAREE Consolidated total liabilities | 484,381
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6. ?E-EH ®w

SEAERERE (B)
R-ZFENF+-_A=+—H

BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 3| December 2008

Bh%E
RBER BEEE ft ENER
Wind Energy  Operation EHER HAES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM  Trading of communication &a
Products Farm Products Materials Business Consolidated
TET TET TET TAT TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
PREE Segment assets 378,138 431,731 79,356 — 78901 968,126
RERHEH Interests in jointly
B ER controlled entities 902,418
AEAE Unallocated
REAE corporate assets 295,186
GREELRE Consolidated total assets 2,165,730
B LIABILITIES
AEEE Segment liabilities - 1,883 23712 274 50,058 75927
AEAE Unallocated
RAGE corporate liabilties 813,891
GARBEAE Consolidated total liabilities 889,818

REENBERARIESBRER

s BRAASEMAR
&= &é%%&ﬁﬁﬁéwﬂé?({g
A IRTTA ﬁ%&fﬁéiﬁm - IBEE
HOREZHRENE - BBRME16

ﬁﬁﬁﬁuZﬁiﬁn RERESHE -

HAZHER 2

s BAASEZETHEEREILERRA
5y MBREIEEZHRENE -

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

* all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interests in jointly controlled entities which cannot be allocated,
investment properties, and other financial assets that comprise
of mainly bank balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in note [6;and

» all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
certain borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. 7 HEEH @)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

R EHEH

Other segment information

R-ZEZAF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2009

BA%E
HHER B5EE it CEiES
Wind Energy  Operation ERER WHES  Telecom-
Related of Wind REPM  Trading of munication FELE g8
Products Farm  Products  Materials Business Unallocated Consolidated
TET TEL T T T T Fix
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000
BEEME Amounts included in
AR the measure of segment
BRASHEAE profit or loss or
LEH segment assets:
nx - BER Addition of property;
RERE plant and equipment 100,304 18 12 — 6,050 1,741 108,125
nx - BER Depreciation of property,
RETE plant and equipment 6,723 1,764 1,677 — 6,119 1,837 28,120
RERE A (BE) (Reversal of) allowance
for doubtful debts — (194) 36!1 — 2,121 — 5538
REFERRE Allowance for obsolete
inventories — — — — 6,349 — 6,349
LEWZE  BR Loss on disposal of
k& EER property, plant and
equipment — — — — 62 6 68
REERNE 2R Interests in associates — 204,875 — — 22,405 = 227280
FEfh R4 Interests in jointly
ERER controlled entities 24270 51731 — — — 978,114 1,054,117
YU Share of (loss) profit
(BR) &M of associates (1422) 26528 — — 273 — 25379
FEfh R4 Share of (loss) profit of jointly
ER(BR) &7 controlled entities (18495) — — — — 93,125 74,630
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

PEER @ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Htv 3 EEH (8) Other segment information (Continued)
RZZEZENFTZHA=1+—H At 31 December 2008
BAHBE
HEER BEEE #t EEES
Wind Energy ~ Operation ERER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM  Trading of communication ~ ®&85 & &8
Products Farm Products Material Business Unallocated Consolidated

THT THT THx THx TR TR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEEHESBEN  Amountsinduded in

IEERAHER the measure of segment

LR profit or loss or

segment assets:
nx BER Addition of property,

RERE plant and equipment — 271810 10,322 — 4639 3074 290,045
nx BER Depreciation of property,

RENE plant and equipment = 1051 859 — 6,640 1077 9,627
BHEESEH Amortisation of intangble assets — — — = 4900 = 4900
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts — — — — 1,441 - 1,441
REFEER Allowance for obsolete

inventories = = = = 12,738 = 12,738
HENE  BE Loss on disposal of
ET 1 property, plant and
equipment = = = = 257 19 276
N AINCIPR: £ Interests in associates 1422 203,090 — = 7314 = 211,826
RER Interests in jointly

BEER controlled entities 47277 — — — = 902418 949 695
EEBERT Share of (loss) profit

(B18) & of associates (1428) 34383 (1234) — (1,090) — 30,631
FElE R Share of (loss) profit of jointly

BE(58)&T controlled entities (6,070) — — — = 47118 41,048
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. #EEH » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HESER Geographical information
AEBZEBUREERDEZ Efit The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions
[& ° of the PRC.,
() ARERBIARPZEXEHE () The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed
I below:
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
B E il 3 [ Other regions of the PRC 614,371 126,342
Bk Hong Kong 31,825 24,575
EH United States of America 17,119 28,539
Hit Others 58 4,750
663,373 184,206
(i) REEMBUESBNAEEIER (i) Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding
HEE (SRITARN BANER financial instruments) by geographical location of the assets are
HBEOT detailed below:
kRBDEERMEE

Carrying amount

of non-current assets

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

B E i 3 [ Other regions of the PRC 1,677,549 1,632,014
BB Hong Kong 33,107 16,479
1,710,656 1,648,493
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. D EER @) 6.

FREREFEH

ERBRAEBRZEREI0%NEFNA
BEREXZEMT :

BEEA Customer A!
X FB? Customer B?
®EC? Customer C?
XFD? Customer D?

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing

over 0% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
314,565 N/A*
170,684 47,384
N/A* 36,309
N/A* 35,813

| O RARERBERERERHEZE AT
ERMAEERERRKEEERAH
RENHEEM 2 EBER -

: HHESERE
T BHEGEREE

¢ HEEERUASEAEEFRERAE
B/10% - At - BERFPHREATEA
(N/A) °

Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products, which was solely
contributed from sales of goods to an associate, Beijing EWT-CASC
Directwind Marketing and Sales Co., Ltd. during the year.

Revenue from Trading of Materials
Revenue from Telecommunication Business

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
sales of the Group, thus disclosure for the specific customers is not
applicable (“N/A™).
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7. bl A 7. OTHER INCOME
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
H g A B 4% Other income comprises:
R E R H A CDM income 6,772 4031
I B Government grants 2,555 339
Bl A Rental income 1,292 1292
FEHA Interest income 3,288 4971
B HRE X e % 8 Net exchange gain recognised 266 996
Hh Others 5,160 2,051
19,333 13,680
8. MBRA 8. FINANCE COSTS
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RITREMERN B L Interest on bank and other loans:
- ARLFNEHER — wholly repayable within five years 46,865 33,224
—NERAERNBRER — not wholly repayable within five years 6,186 845
53,051 34,069
9. $iIE 9. TAXATION
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AEEHEXHEE Tax charge for the year comprises:
hEARAENR PRC Enterprise Income Tax
REE Current year 5,504 2,178
TEBERE Overprovision in prior years (1,050) —
4,454 2,178
BT IE X M (B 5 27) Deferred tax charge (note 27) 2,637 5,243
7,091 7,421
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BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

9. HE &) 9. TAXATION (Continued)
AEEHBEXHARBAERN (BE) 2 The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit (loss)
HERMT - before taxation is as follows:
2009 2008
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$000
BR B A& A (B 1) Profit (loss) before taxation 77,892 (488,507)
BRBEARMER Tax charge (credit) at PRC Enterprise
BE26% BB H (H%)  Income Tax rate of 25%
(ZZZ)\F : 25%) (2008: 25%) 19,473 (122,127)
FE (6 e N A) T R o Share of results of associates and jointly
EREXSE controlled entities (25,002) (17,920)
T AT HIBR B X Tax effect of expenses not deductible
LB for tax purpose 9,139 122,296
AEERTAMBEGEZRE  Tax effect of deductible temporary
ZRBTE differences not recognised 1,843 3,001
TR RB WA Tax effect of income not taxable
ZHBTE for tax purpose (16,860) (1,947)
RICHEREE Tax effect of losses not
LB RE recognised 14,931 16,823
B LAl ﬂE”“ﬁE@ZﬁIE% #8  Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (456) (3,725)
AEHEREFEHRER Tax effect of temporary differences attributable to
el Eﬁ%ﬁzmi‘%%; undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries 4,512 5812
EHMAZRREERK Effect of different tax rates of
MBARZ TRAMEFE  subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 2,048 6,307
BYHE—HEAR %Rf% Effect of tax concessions/exemptions granted to
R/ #HezTE a subsidiary in the PRC (1,487) (801)
EFBEERE Overprovision in prior years (1,050) —
Bt Others - (298)
AEREBRIEXH Tax charge for the year 7,091 742
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HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

9.

HIE 2

RZEENENAZ+RB  BBELE
ZRBCETNFRAGHER) - A
AINEHERH175%F P E165% ' B
2008/20097F B ERB AR © At - MF
W BEABGRIKREERRF
16.5%:T & - HRERB A FE BHIE
BREEEEEAE REAREEEN
FHEAETHRE -

BEPEAREMBECEREHRE (D
EMBRE]) RECEMBHREERMA
B F BB RAAIZHEE _TENF
—HA—BR%EK25% °

RETFBEEBZEZRAN  KAEEES
—RTEMBATE —TELF (MEM
BAEE) EBMFRRARTEMGEH -
WRRIRZE=FE%50% °
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9. TAXATION (Continued)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No tax is payable on the
profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the assessable profit is

wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from | January
2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, one of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries is exempted from PRC income tax for
two years starting from year 2007, which was their first profit-making

year, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

105 EFEimF (B8) 10.PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE R (EB) BRI Profit (loss) for the year has been
THRERER : arrived at after charging:
e Directors’ emoluments 3,184 4191
Hi B TRA Other staff costs 46,664 34,244
Hio g 8RR Other staff’s retirement benefits
78 A 5T 31 5% scheme contributions 4,955 [,457
54,803 39,892
BVEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets
GTABEERXAN) (included in cost of sales) — 4900
% & 6D Bl & Auditor’s remuneration 2,800 2,800
ERARASX I FERAK Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
(BREREFERE (including allowance for obsolete
6,349,000 7T (ZZEZ /A& ©  inventories of HK$6,349,000
12,738,000 7T) ) (2008: HK$12,738,000)) 564,479 162,689
ME BERRBZIE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 28,120 9,627
HEME  BEK Loss on disposal of property,
Rz B8R plant and equipment 68 276
MM REFZ Minimum lease payments under
RERNZ operating leases in respect
ENRERS of land and buildings 7,554 7,205
RRRE Allowance for doubtful debts 5,538 I1,44]
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MNEEREENE | 1.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) E= (a) Directors
ENHERNL(ZEZNE - +Z The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2008:
f)EERE2MeWT : twelve) directors were as follows:
2009 2008
HpMe 0
Other emoluments Other emoluments
4R BHEH §4R BB
A STEER 2R THER
Salaries  Retirement Salaries  Retirement
2  and other benefits scheme @t #%  and other benefits scheme @t
ESAE Name of director Fees benefits contributions Total Fees benefits contributions Total

TERL TET FiEL TER TEL TER TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

kgl Han Shuwang - 1,530 - 1,530 - 1,704 - 1,704
TER Wang Xiaodong - 1,130 12 1,142 — 1262 12 1274
RI W Jiang - - = = - — _
EER Tang Guohong = = = = = = = -
E37 Li Guang = 212 = 202 - 913 - 913
1R Wang Dechen 100 - - 100 100 - = 100
HEE Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 100 - - 100 100 = = 100
RER Gordan Ng 100 - - 100 100 - = 100
iBE Moh Kwen Yung* - - = = — - _
Ktrig Zhu Shixiong* - - - - _ _ _
HE* Wang Fai, Philip* = - - - _ _ _
ER Yiu Ying Wai* = - - - _ _ _

300 2872 1 3,184 30 3879 12 4191
* REERECRBEZTENET *  These directors resigned during the year ended 31 December

ZA=T—BLEFEAFE - 2008.

100 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

MEERESMNE » 11.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EF (8) (a) Directors (Continued)

BREEERBE_ZTENFTA No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 3l
ST-HUEFERETAGH (=T December 2009 (2008: Nil).
TNF &) -

(b) AfimEHMES (b) Five highest paid individuals
LfusesiMEEeEMmUu (=22 The five highest paid individuals included two (2008: three)
NEZM)EF - =L (ZFEN directors. The emoluments of the three (2008: two) highest paid
F:RL)ReFMEEZHMe M individuals were as follows:

T
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
HehHEMEF Salaries and other benefits 2,544 1,826
RARAR M 5T 8 3K Retirement benefits scheme contributions - —
2,544 1,826
MERNYFNF L= (ZEEN The aggregate emoluments paid to each of the above three
R RS EMESSAYEE (2008: two) highest paid individuals for both years did not
4% B % #338.1,000,0003% 7T ° exceed HK$ 1,000,000

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

12,1 B

BE-FSAS+-A=t-BLA
B R B AOR B R B E TR
B B R RN R R
EARE(CEENE : 8) o

13.8IREF (BR) - &F

ADAEE AR 2 EREREF (F
8) VR TR BB E -

12.DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 3|
December 2009, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2008: Nil).

I13.EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data.

2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REFEERERRT Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic
(B#8) 2 &7 (EB8) earnings (loss) per share 68,033 (499,626)
BROHE
Number of shares
2009 2008
RAEstE &K Weighted average number of shares for
EREN(EE) the purposes of basic
Z INHETH K5 E B earnings (loss) per share 3,660,858,682 3,623,995,668

REE-FBAFT=A=T—AIL#F
ERZERTMETHRBRE RN =T
ENET—BREBRH0S0ETLE
BRERERNRETEERTHRD
PA T I L &

102 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 3| December 2009 had been adjusted for the effect of
placing of existing shares and top-up subscription of new shares
at a price of HK$0.80 per share issued in November 2009.
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HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
DT E FAIR VALUE

REA At beginning of the year 20,520 21,000
BE 3 38 & Exchange adjustment — 1,800

BERERER Increase (decrease) in fair value recognised
ZAFEENCRD) in profit or loss 3,420 (2,280)
REK At end of the year 23,940 20,520

gt BEEFRRENREY R
R BRI o

AEER-_ZFTEAF+_A=t—HZ
REMEATELARAEEER] - K
HEBYAEREXGEMETHE &
ARIESFETZHENZRPERIE
HRUBERMEmEMETHE -

AKERN-_FENF+-_A=1t—-HZ
REMEAVEREAKBYTERFEL
BURBHRERMGERMKSBFEMTAE
RARREBETIE - K BIFHEDTT
BRARRMLEMAEEE  HENMA
A ETEUNERECAEERK
RIEH ZEGENR2EZRERYIE
UEROELTERHERKES -

AEERERERES KA KEHER
ARFFERNBRERN BN E#R
BRAFERAGE  ADARENE
WAREEAR °

The above investment property is located in Shenzhen, the PRC

under medium lease term.

The fair value of the Group's investment property as at 3|
December 2009 has been determined by the directors of the
Company. No valuation has been performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. The valuation performed by the
directors of the Company was arrived at by reference to recent

market prices for similar commercial properties in Shenzhen, the
PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 December
2008 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Knight Frank
Petty Limited is a member of the Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar

commercial properties in Shenzhen, the PRC.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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15. 9% « B E KR E/WEEY 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS

¥ BRERRBEAZFZ PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
He AND EQUIPMENT
KR -Rf  HIRE BAR
gt LK#E HERRK BAR BAE
it &2 Plant, Wind 18 R
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds Furniture "E
land and and plant and and and office Motor ag
buildings ~ machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles Total

TET TEL TET FiET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

WA COST
RZZENF-A-H At | January 2008 202 37302 = 314 18310 6,550 65,506
EiHE Fxchange adjustments 18 307 = 235 4| 304 4,145
Em Additions = 1,584 58633 148 2446 4775 67586
WENE Acquired on acquisition of

NARER subsidiaries 12652 9495 198,638 = 434 1,240 102459
& Disposdls — (136) = = (3659) (803) (583)
R-ZFZNFF-B=F—H  At3l December 2008 12,872 50,147 257,271 3525 17992 12,066 353873
Em Addtions — 508 75,183 1785 2776 3029 108,125
e Disposals (220) (319) = 1) (1,110) (122) (1.861)
RZZENEFZA=FT—H A3l December 2009 12652 54910 336,454 21290 19,658 15173 460,137
e DEPRECIATION
R-ZEN\E-A-H At | January 2008 88 16,845 = 200 13,766 1,985 34904
EXAE Exchange adjustments 8 876 — 195 205 62 306
AERR Provided for the year 68 5799 944 400 1151 1,265 9617
(HE R i Eliminated on disposals ~ (17) - - 973) (80) (1,205)
RZZENETZFE=1-H  At3l December 2008 164 23348 944 2775 14149 303 461
REER Provided for the year 677 6933 15432 1,953 | 346 1,779 28,120
=k Eiminated on disposals (114) (159) = (51) (956) ) (1,265)
RZENFF-B=T—H  At3I December 2009 7 3012 16,376 4677 14539 5,006 71447
BEFE CARRYING VALUES
RZZENEFZA=+-H A3l December 2009 11925 24788 320078 16613 5,019 10,167 388,690
RZFZNFF-B=FT—H At 3l December 2008 12,708 26799 256,327 750 3843 8,834 309,261

104 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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15.9% « BERREWEY

£ BRERRBEAZFZ
e A )

AR  BERREZEE )
EEERUTERFE :

HELME 4%k HBHEESF
BF H o ARG E A%
WE - &E  9-15%
K 2%
BAOEERE 5- 15%
B
BARTA 25%
HKER 10 — 25%
FENESI L
qE 18 — 25%

AEE LA CYERSBNTEES
REIFEAD -

R=ZFZEAF+_A=+—H %tk
BWE WERHRE2EE7,377,000%
T(ZEZENF : &) R BIES K
NZHBRARINEERSE 2 RS o

RZZEZENFF+ZA=+—0 " KB
ARRAGELERBYE BERIEX
3% £ 49107,194,0008 7T ° FA » K&
BAEZRNEESEBER —HAKE
MR 2 HFAEGERELE - Bt - ¥
EWEREZEE RAASE B ERERE
REETFHREES

o

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

I15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS

PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and 4 - 5% or over the unexpired

buildings lease terms, whichever is shorter
Plant, equipment and 9-15%
machinery
Wind energy plant and 5-15%
equipment
Moulds and tools 25%
Furniture and 10 - 25%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 18 - 25%

The Group's property interests shown above were held under

medium-term leases in the PRC.

At 31 December 2009, the Group also had deposits paid for the
acquisition of machineries that will be established in Wuxi, the PRC
of HK$7,377,000 (2008: Nil).

A sum of approximately HK$107,194,000 as at 3| December 2008
was paid as deposit for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment for the operation of wind farm by a subsidiary. During the
year, the Group decided that such wind power energy operation will
be operated by a newly established jointly controlled entity of the
Group. Accordingly, the property, plant and equipment were used by
the Group for the manufacture of wind turbines and subsequently

sold to the jointly controlled entity.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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16.75 8 16.GOODWILL
FET
HK$'000
B COST
R-_ZEZENF—-A—H At | January 2008 3210
Yo B Bt 188 A =) (Pd 5E31) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) 8,548
R-ZZZNF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 11,758
WEMBRARRIIMER Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 704
R-ZZZAF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 12,462
B IMPAIRMENT
RZZEZENF-H—H " At | January 2008,
ZZN\FE+A=+—-BR 31 December 2008 and
—EENAE+A=t—H 31 December 2009 3,210
BRMEE CARRYING VALUES
R_ZEENEFE+_-_R=+—H At 3| December 2009 9,252
RZZEZENF+-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2008 8,548
FRENRANS  ERACAFHNE For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with indefinite
ZFESREMEMBAMRSELSEN - & useful lives has been allocated to two individual cash generating units
RRSELURRITBHRERD R T (“CGUs") including the Operation of Wind Farm segment and the
NRR_ZENFE+-_RA=+—-H% REPM Products segment. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31
ERSBUNNBERDE December 2009 allocated to these units are as follows:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
5 EE Operation of Wind Farm 1,968 1,968
MmTERE® REPM Products 7,284 6,580
9,252 8,548

106 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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16.55 2 »)

ReELEU 2 RESERERE
BEAESL - EREEAEZZIERR
TDRERFERER - ERXREHEER
EERAZHEN - ERERABRTA
EREFBERE - RREEERERR
CELABNETRARIREMGIE -
BERDETEEREAR/E - BTHE
BEBOTETORMERR - EEBRE
BRAZEZHREBEMERTBRT

FR NEBFRUARTHNEELER
BB BEEmMSL 2RSS REREANA
HEE ZHHBHE MZBEARNE
BE#ME 2 OFHE - RABEERD
TEREMZOBBEE11.7%(ZZE
NE 1 11.7%) R13% (ZEZF )\ F -
15%) REH  URBMEERBERRS
EEBNBERR 2 REMETME - &
RAEBMTEERERN  BIGEE

BIERERNAFHERES A A
35%K19% c AFHIN R e RER
BEEREILNIELHE - EREMRE
FAZEBRIZEMATELEBEISHE
REEAERDBEKRSE - NMEF
EHENEERABERERSE -

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in

the market.

During the year the Group performed impairment review for
goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the financial
budgets which was prepared by using the most recent financial
results with projections approved by management covering a 5-year
period at discount rates of |1.7% (2008: |1.7%) for Operation of
Wind Farm and 13% (2008: 15%) for REPM Products, which reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates being used for the 5-year
period for Operation of Wind Farm and REPM Products are 3.5%
and 19% respectively, in light of the Group's industry growth
forecasts. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 3.5%. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount. No impairment loss on goodwill was

recognised in profit or loss for both years.
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17 BB EE 17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B
BREBRA HE
Development  Technology nE
costs license right Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BA& COST
RZZEZNF—HA—H At | January 2008 8,618 35,100 43,718
38 Write-off (8,618) — (8,618)
RZZENF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2008
“EENFTZA=1T—H and 31 December 2009 — 35,100 35,100
BHERAE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RZZEZENE-HA—H At | January 2008 8,618 30,200 38,818
KERHH Amortised for the year — 4900 4900
S 3 Eliminated on write off (8,618) — (8,618)
R_ZEENF+-_A=+—H At 3| December 2008
—ZENFETZA=T—H and 3| December 2009 — 35,100 35,100
HREEE CARRYING VALUES

R=BEAF+ZA= TR

At 31 December 2009

RZZENFTZA=+—H

At 3| December 2008

EBVEER NI HREREREEE

following periods:

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the

BB AR 3E5F Development costs 3 -5 years
1 i 4 3F Technology license right 3 years

108 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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18 REIEAB 2R I8.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETRE 2K A Cost of unlisted investments 182,252 171578
BE 5, 58 Exchange adjustments 16,644 17,230
FEAE W B 128 7| & Share of post-acquisition profits and other
Hith2HE K5 comprehensive income,
HEBRERE net of dividend received 28,384 23,018
227,280 211,826
ATAKR ETMRE KA 2 EE4,644,0008 Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
TL(ZZTN\F : 426,000 ) R BB HK$4,644,000 (2008: HK$426,000) arising on the acquisition of
BERF - associates.
AEEERIEREREBERRZE The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of an
B -AEFERBERERZEEBER associate. The amount of unrecognised share of loss of the associate,
AERE REasBRRLRARgHEK extracted from the relevant management account of the associate,
BT both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AERRERZEMN Unrecognised share of loss of
BERNRER associate for the year (284) (1,260)
Rt RERZEG Accumulated unrecognised share of
BERRER loss of an associate (79,939) (79,655)

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 109
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1B RBEAT 2R @) 18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
ASEMENRZHAMBEERMT - The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associates is set out below:

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$:000
B ERE Total assets 3,722,803 3,980,907
BERHE Total liabilities 2,613,939 2921713
BEFE Net assets 1,108,864 1,059,194
AEBEGBHELRRZ Group's share of net
BEFHE assets of associates 222,636 211,400
KA Revenue 748,978 470,360
REF M Profit for the year 126,962 149,783
REFEHBES DA EE Group's share of results of associates 25,095 29371
AEBR-_ZEZNFT_HA=+—HZ Details of the principal associates of the Group at 3| December
FEBERAFBEHNMT38 2009 are set out in note 38.

110 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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1VREEENEEZES 19.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERZEHEBZIE LT Cost of unlisted investments in jointly controlled
BERA  HIBRUEEATARE  entities, net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,763,643 | 716,789
BB Exchange adjustments 106,039 106,457
JE(GWEE %R - J0BRARE  Share of post-acquisitions profits, net of dividend 28,204 25,407
L EEFE Share of net assets 1,897,886 1,848,653
B ERRBZBEERE Less: Impairment loss recognised (843,769) (898,958)
1,054,117 949,695
EETREKABER_-_ZZTLFAY Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
BHAEGSEBMELE 2 H B HK$1,155,343,000 (2008: HK$1,155,343,000) arising on the
1,155,343,000 T (Z T T N\ & : acquisition of jointly controlled entities in 2007.

1,155,343,000) °

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 111
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19 RERERNERZER @

19.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

FRAEEREER —FXREHE
BUREREEREIRERRAEAR
DA REREREEHRERRR) 2
1 = 2 B T {8 % 51 7 {8 /&5 #8 55,189,000
AT (RBEFERRANEEE
394,549,000 7T 2 F) o FA - AR
TS ERRREERRHY - BN =
EENFE_T——FEHERERRE
BEREZRENERE  HFAEHEE
RAFEEHBERHEEER - RER

THIERE G T RESEEMEESR
RZETBERPREATRHESER

HRZETEREE T RESEERER
ERFAEFEHAEE(BRABFASEEN
BHAREHERELE 2 EARARE
MERE) MER @ KR R15%EER
FHFHE RBMEBAERZEGERES
kK EEERER Zﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁoﬁm
fTEERTER B H R B EE
BAAEHIERR13%:tE - AEHAS
ZHEeRERBTEREILNIEL#
ﬁﬁo

ZEN\FEE T RERE AR LR
T IRAMABRTAERERERE
BERAAEZZEEEREER
405,012,000 7T ° AIE & BIREETE
HAAREREGEREEFECREEME
HIK

ol 9&

\
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(Continued)

During the year, the Group made a reversal of impairment loss of
HK$55,189,000 (out of the impairment loss previously recognised in
prior years of HK$394,549,000) in relation to the carrying amount
of an interest in a jointly controlled entity, Beijing Delphi Wanyuan
Engine Management Systems Co. Ltd., which is engaged in the
manufacturing of automotive engine management systems and
components. During the year, the government of the PRC has
introduced a number of policies and incentive subsidies to
encourage the development and consumption of low emission
automobile manufactured in the PRC from the years of 2009 to
2011, and the jointly controlled entity has recorded an increase in
sales of products during the current year. The increase of the
recoverable amount of the interest in the jointly controlled entity
was mainly attributable to the increase of sales growth after the
introduction of these new policies in the PRC. The recoverable
amount of interest in the jointly controlled entity is determined by
management from value in use calculation by estimating the Group's
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the jointly controlled entity covering a
5-year period at discount rate of 15%, which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
investment in the jointly controlled entity. The growth rate being
used for the 5-year period for operation of the jointly controlled
entity is 13% in light of the industry growth forecast. Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3.5%.

The Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$405,012,000 in
2008 in relation to the carrying amount of the interest in a jointly
controlled entity, Nantong CASC Wanyuan Acciona Wind Turbine
Manufacture Corporation Ltd. The recoverable amount was
determined based on the value of the underlying assets attributable

to the Group estimated by the directors.
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RZZTNE  AEETERAR
Rzt EEES 2 EAEZRERE
19,153,000/ 7T » AT [El & i F A B
EESE  AAANRBBETER
FRAXAZHERESERABEERRR
ZRAMGTEZMBEEI2%E13% -
GRS EEGEESHREEREHEE
I ARARENREBE - Al - £
BT ESE s N R TR
BREERENERERESE -

BRAEAREEASE D ARE R
REHERZRAMBEEREIWMT
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

19.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

The Group also recognised an impairment loss of HK$ 19,153,000 in
2008 in relation to the carrying amounts of interests in other jointly
controlled entities. The recoverable amount is determined from value
in use calculation by estimating the Group's share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the jointly controlled entities, using discount rates ranging from
12% to 13% in both years which reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the jointly
controlled entities. Thus, the excess of the carrying amount of these
interests in jointly controlled entities over the recoverable amount is

recognised as an impairment loss.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's interest which

are accounted for using equity method is set out below:

2009 2008

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

ERBEE Non-current assets 157,416 160,836
mEEE Current assets 694,605 494,302
nBa R Current liabilties (481,806) (351 441)
BEFE Net assets 370,215 303,697
WA Income 1,154,122 1,256,821
B Expenses (1,062,209) (1,191,706)
RE [ A Profit for the year 91,913 65,115

ARER-_FEAF+-_A=1t—HZ
TEARZHERFEHNM I

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group at 3|

December 2009 are set out in note 38.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS

113



e M B R RM

£ 3$R Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

20 RITEHBER

R-ZZTNAE+_A=+—H  BRSB
—RIRITRE122.25%£3.33% 2 BT F
FlEF RN —ERITHETEBTERR
@ {8 & /& 148,200,000/ 7T (Z T T N\
F:|)  c REHARTARR - ZETF
RZEEBA DT ¢

20.FIXED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2009, bank deposits that carry fixed interests rates
which range from 2.25% to 3.33% per annum with carrying amounts
of HK$148,200,000 (2008: Nil) are placed in a bank for general
banking facilities granted to the Group which cannot be redeemed
before their maturity dates. An analysis of the maturity of these

deposits are as follows:

2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$:000
—FURIHEHE Amount due after one year 91,200 —
—FRNIHEHE Amount due within one year 57,000 —
148,200 —

21.B58 21.INVENTORIES
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
JR#% % Raw materials 30,381 16,757
EHm Work-in-progress 21,735 13,561
24PX o Finished goods 24,712 24,922
76,828 55,240

114 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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2285 REMEBKR

BESREMERRREESEER
50,770,000 & ( = T T N\ &
41,910,000 7T) - AEEGLTERFF
HHEERHEEE R RIZERE
HOTESHBATERIERFPERD
BR—FANREE - BEZZEAHMIFZE
SENGR (MR E) NG BRI T AR
BT ¢

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$50,770,000 (2008: HK$41,910,000). The Group allows credit
periods for 90 days on average to its customers for sales of goods
and rendering of services. At the discretion of the executive
directors, several major customers were allowed to settle their
balances beyond the credit terms up to one year. The following is an
aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowances, presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2009 2008

FET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

30H A Within 30 days 18,604 29,246
31290H Between 31 - 90 days 19,531 8,090
912180H Between 91 - 180 days 833 3,361
181Z365H Between 181 - 365 days 4,080 —
HiE—F Over | year 7,722 1213
50,770 41910

AEEZBESREGESHBERDBRE
12,635,000 T 2 EWEFR (ZZTEN
F 4,574,000 L) + ZEEREFRE R
SEEHBRE mMASERABEERES
B AEEVW I FERSHR L EME
R ZERBER 2 FEHKRE 53650
(ZEZ\F : 180H) °

o

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$12,635,000 (2008: HK$4,574,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
365 days (2008: 180 days).

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
TEHAXERER (KE) HRAS
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285 RHEMEWR o
B 1B {2 55 B 48 2 5 5 e M 3 40 B s

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

T
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
912 180H Between 91 - 180 days 833 3,361
181%2365H Between 181 - 365 days 4,080 —
iE—F Over | year 7,722 1213
fmE Total 12,635 4574

AKE—REBHMAEIRA365R M ELK
Fe8RE  EREBERR  %FR
#1365 H & B R — R BRI E - BT

The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 365
days because historical experiences is such that receivables that are

past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for some

EENBRTERREERZETEER major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the
FERAN - executive directors.
REBEEEHNT - Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FNEEA Balance at beginning of the year 138,664 127,223
EHREWAZERRMERE Impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables 5,538 [1,441
FRER Balance at end of the year 144,202 138,664

RIEBBHESIEASAR, RRFR
BEAEBRYEEARZNERRENE
HRBER - ARELERZSEHRE
AEMER®

116 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.



£$R Annual Report 2009

& & B 5 4R 3R B B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2B RHEMEKRR 2

REMERFERR AEEZHTE
FHEHBMETGECR P ZEEE
ZRAEEFPZEERE - BTEFZ
REL2ZATAELGRETTE DR
o AEEEHBMEREREZLEER
B 70% (ZZT\F : 90%) B HEW
AL Em BT R E

RZBEENF+ZA=F+—HiFALXE
Izﬁtﬂmuﬁzmﬂﬁ%@%,ﬂa T B A A
Bt % 8,459,000 ;L (Z 2T N\ F
2,280,000/ 7T) 2 5% - 9,884,000/ 7T
(ZZZ \F : 49,719,000/ 7T) 2 fE M
—REFAZFHEEIRE  BHREAK
W8 A Rl B R M K 2 2 £82,916,000
BT (ZET/\F : 42,393,0008 T) &
FEUTZ 512,308,000 L (ZTT N\ F ¢
12,165,000/ 7T) °

o RZFEEAFTZA=+—HK
H fth, & Wi K 0 9 FE M B R A R [R) & R A
BrWBLARZPBEMARBEEERER
DA ([ME]) REKB AR 2 HE
15,291,000 7w (= T T J\ §
15,291,000/ JT) ° ;z%mxam%m
B RERARRERERE -

BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement
history. 70% (2008: 90%) of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the best credit history managed by the

Group's marketing team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 3|1 December 2009 are
advance to minority shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$8,459,000
(2008: HK$2,280,000), a dividend receivable from a jointly controlled
entity of HK$9,884,000 (2008: HK$49,719,000), deposits on
purchase of materials for subsidiaries in the PRC of HK$82,916,000
(2008: HK$42,393,000) and bills receivable of HK$12,308,000 (2008:
HK$12,165,000).

In addition, other receivables at 31 December 2009 included
amounts due from China Aerospace International Holdings Limited
("CASIL") and its subsidiaries, of HK$15291,000 (2008:
HK$15,291,000). CASIL, a subsidiary of CASC, is a fellow subsidiary
of the Company. The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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23.FE TR B E AT
Bl BB EATRREER 28RS

-

BREE -

[ TN g T

23.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and are repayable on demand.

Movement in the allowance for amounts due from associates:

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$°000 HK$:000

F & Balance at beginning of the year 35,335 17,498
Y el 2 2 SR A & Recovery of fully impaired receivable from

RN an associate (11,952) —

JEWEEE RAIRZ B Impairment losses recognised in
BRREEE respect of amounts due from associates = 17,837
FRER Balance at end of the year 23,383 35,335

24 RITHEE CHBRTH
S

RITERERRITHER

RITAEBRIL0.01%Z20.81% 2 TiHFEFIE
(ZZEZENF : 0.36%E1.17%) 5T B o

B R 1717 IR 0.36% 2 [E & F Il &
(ZZTN\E : 0.36%) :H 8 - BEFR
11757 97,851,0008 L (ZEZ )\ F -
41,599,000 T) BE FHRATTE 2 RE
C UHBEARPDEE  EHER=_F—
TE=-REEHBAEERER -

118 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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24.BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.819% (2008: 0.36% to |.17%) per annum.

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.36% (2008:
0.36%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$97,851,000 (2008: HK$41,599,000), have been pledged to
secure certain bank facilities and are therefore classified as current
asset. It will be released in March 2010 upon the settlement of the

related borrowings.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$47,429,000 (2008: HK$40,108,000). The following is an aged

analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

TREREEZERZHRESTAOT reporting period:
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
30HA Within 30 days 20,489 20,476
31290H Between 31 - 90 days 14,419 5924
91£180H Between 91 - 180 days 2,721 2,166
181£365H Between 181 - 365 days 2,317 1,933
i —F Over | year 7,483 9,609
47,429 40,108
RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H  #AR Included in the Group's other payables at 3| December 2009 are

SEHMENRBREEETIRENK
1§33,925,0008 L (ZEZENEF : &) -
78 S R B 30H43,5613,0008 T (=&
T\ : 2,632,000 7T) & &+ A B
14,246,000 7T (ZZFZ )\ : 15,664,000
BIL) °

o RZEZENFFZA=1+—H "
HEN R RETAEAMBRE
BB X Bl 2 FKIE4,407,0008 L (ZEE
J\EE : 4,407,000 7L) - ZERERE
B 2EREEXMEE

o

accrual for construction work of HK$33,925,000 (2008: Nil), receipt
in advance from customers of HK$43,513,000 (2008: HK$2,632,000)
and interest payable of HK$ 14,246,000 (2008: HK$15,664,000).

In addition, other payables at 3| December 2009 included amounts
due to CASIL and its subsidiaries of HK$4,407,000 (2008:
HK$4,407,000). The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and are repayable on demand.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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26.15 & 26.BORROWINGS
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RITERER (fita) Short term bank loan (note a) 285,000 45,600
REREEE R (ffztb) Short term shareholder's loans (note b) — 125,000
BIRBER (Mitc) Long term bank loan (note c) 130,000 —
BREREBAER (ffitd) Long term shareholder's loans (note d) 767,790 486,210
Hitt RBER (M ite) Long term other loans (note e) 94,620 104,880
1,277,410 761,690

B SlARBEEMAR Less: Amount due within one year under
—FRNEEZTA current liabilities (285,000) (170,600)
—F %8z FHE Amount due after one year 992,410 591,090

AEBEEZINBBMBMOT : The maturity of the Group's borrowings

is as follows:

—FR Within one year 285,000 170,600
MEZEREF Between two to five years 897,790 486,210
iR F Over five years 94,620 104,880
1,277,410 761,690

120 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

PERXSEER (KE) FRAE



£$R Annual Report 2009

& & B 5 4R 3R B B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26.fEE )

W

(a)

(c)

RZZEZNF+ZRA=1T—BZ%ZH A
%Eﬁﬁimﬂﬂ%ﬂ}\&M250,000,0007c
ZET)N\F  E) c RBREEFH X
5.31%zt 8 °

EL77)\¢+ A=Z+—Bz&RK

hﬁ%ﬁﬁ 1T E A K 40,000,000
7 Iﬁﬁlmﬁwsm%aﬁ% 3

EE’\iﬂ\VF%ﬂ%ﬁ*

R_ZEENF+_B=+—B XA
Astrotech# {f 35,000,000 7T X
90,000,000/t 2 KA E K + 25l

b
EE R FF5.58%M6%:TE - ZEX
ERFABHREE -

IR IR fE AR R IR 17 B 3K130,000,00075
T(ZTENF : &) c RERZLERA
RITRAEFRB+1.95%FF5E » AR
“T-—F=A=+—BEHEML - R
ZEEAF+ZA=+—H%  FBEE
BB o

FIEEAAERB BT MEZ B DR
ABBHBEREED A ([MABHEE
Bl HEAZTA) B4 2 FRFIEKIE
281,580,000 7t sk A K # 247,000,000
T+ & £ 5767,790,000% L 3k A R #&
673,500,000t ( = T T \ F
486,210,000/ 7t 3t A K # 426,500,000
L)

HREREEM  REMNEIT%ECXE
F5 8 o BF543,210,0008 THARE
476,500,000t ( = T T N\ &

486,210,000 7T 3% A K # 426,500,000
7T ) A & 224,580,000 TT 3 A R %
197,000,0007T (ZZTN\F : &) 5 FIR
—E-—FNARZZE-—NFHAE

= o

BE—FFNF+_A=+—HILFE
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26 .BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(@)

The amount at 3| December 2009 represents unsecured bank loan of
RMB250,000,000 (2008: Nil). The amount bears fixed-rate interest at

5.31% per annum.

The amount at 3| December 2008 represented secured bank loan of
RMB40,000,000. The amount bore fixed-rate interest at 5.31% per

annum and was fully repaid during the year.

The amount at 3| December 2008 represented unsecured loans
advanced from Astrotech of HK$35,000,000 and HK$90,000,000 which
carried fixed-rate interest at 5.58% per annum and 6% per annum

respectively. The loans were fully repaid during the year.

The amount represents unsecured bank loan of HK$ 130,000,000 (2008:
Nil). The amount bears floating-rate interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rates ("HIBOR") plus 1.95% per annum and is repayable in full
on 3| March 2012. The amount was early repaid in full before maturity
subsequent to 3| December 2009.

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co., Ltd. ("ASTF")
as the trustee, with HK$281,580,000 or RMB247,000,000 additionally
raised in the vyear, totalling HK$767,790,000 or RMB673,500,000 (2008:
HK$486,210,000 or RMB426,500,000).

The amounts are unsecured, bears fixed-rate interest ranging from 3.7%
to 6% per annum. Loans of HK$543,210,000 or RMB476,500,000
(2008: HK$486,210,000 or RMB426,500,000) and HK$224,580,000 or
RMB 197,000,000 (2008: Nil) are repayable in April 201 | and April 2014

respectively.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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26.188 @)

e) ZHEEA—HNBEARLERRBR
2 94,620,000% 7T 3k A R # 83,000,000
JL(ZZZT)\F : 104,880,000 7T 3 A
[ #£92,000,00070) 2 B - ZHIHRE
ER - RETFHNE6.2% 8 REAR=
Z_TE+-RAEHEE - K&
10,260,000/ 7T 3k A R #59,000,0007T B
RERRFEE -

26 .BORROWINGS (Continued)

(e) The amount represents a loan of HK$94,620,000 or RMB83,000,000
(2008: HK$ 104,880,000 or RMB92,000,000) advanced from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, bears fixed-rate
interest at 6.2% per annum and is repayable in full in November 2020.
Principal in the amount of HK$10,260,000 or RMB9,000,000 was early
repaid during the year.

27 REHIE 27.DEFERRED TAXATION
AEEEBRRAZERNEERBLAE (B The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
E)MT - recognised by the Group.

nE  EwRE HEAH
HERE HUR MRER AP ERR
Accelerated  Technology Revaluation HIEFE Undistributed
tax license of Tax  profits of g
depreciation right  properties losses  subsidiaries Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE\5-A—-H At | January 2008 124 857 2,146 (%81) — 2,146
BRk (E%) X (Credit) charge to income
statement 26) (608) (570) 835 581 523
REZHTE Effect of change in tax rate ) (49) — 5 — —
RZZENE At 31 December 2008
+-B=t-H 91 — 1,576 (90) 5812 7389
REX(B2) 2 (Credit) charge to income
statement 90 — 855 90 4512 5366
BUREEE Settlement upon dividend
T s received and credit to
income statement = = = = (2729) (2729)
RIZENE At 31 December 2009
+ZA=+-H — — 2431 — 7595 10,026

122 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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27 RERIE ()

R-TEZANFE+-_HA=+—H K&EE
B AR B A A8 % 410,639,000% 7T
(ZZ T\ % : 346,826,000/ L) A {E1K
HBEE 2N RERZ_TENFZ
T4 78 E5 48 7 47545,0005% T HE R IE T F B
BE - BRARBERFT B 2% RR -
HARBFHE4410,639,0008 8 (=
T\ : 346,281,000 L) 2 H B E B
BRAELEHBEE - ABERABEEE
253,884,000% T (= T T N\ &
221,055,000/ 7T) A] TR B 48 o H
BABRREBEBNAFARE -

R-ZZEZTNAE+_A=+—H8 ' ' ~£H
WA AR E K = 5882,700,000/8 7T (=
TT )\ : 75,328,000/87T) > R T A
AR EERDREN A B ARG R E
BOMERLUNRERE=ERARL
BMIBEE o

BEFEHFHE AT N\F—A—
A8 B D BB EUS F i = kA
BREFREHWEN - EBZSHEM
BRAAARSEGFNERZREZEERE
7,695,000 (ZZZ )\ F : 5,812,000
BT BELBE - ARASE R DA
ERZEEBDEHE REERPEK
BRAASE&FNERZREZEERE
14,661,0008 © (= & T N\ F
14,100,000/ 70) 4R & B 7 3Rk (E
BE MERZRUTETERITRER
KER o

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$410,639,000 (2008: HK$346,826,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$545,000 of such tax
losses in 2008. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of approximately HK$4 10,639,000 (2008:
HK$346,281,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$253,884,000
(2008: HK$221,055,000) that may be carried forward indefinitely. The

remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five years.

At 31 December 2009, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of HK$82,700,000 (2008: HK$75,328,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be

utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$7,595,000 (2008:
HK$5,812,000) has been provided in respect of temporary
differences attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$ 14,661,000 (2008: HK$14,100,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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28.1%8 & 28.SHARE CAPITAL
BHEE % A E B
Number of shares Amount
FETT
HK$'000
FREBE0.10B T2 EBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZZEZENF-H—-H " At | January 2008,
—EENFF+A=+—-HEK 3| December 2008 and
—EENE+-_RA=+—H 3| December 2009 [0,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEETRHR Issued and fully paid:
RN—_ZEENF—-—A—AK At | January 2008 and
—EENFE+-_A=1+—H 3| December 2008 3,623,995,668 362,400
i & R BB Ak £ (Fft 5T) Placing and subscription
of shares (Note) 345,000,000 34,500
—“EEAF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 3,968,995,668 396,900
K ez Note:

R-ZZNF+—A+H  ARARERTK
DEERALERHT TN ZEERR0.80E T
BB B - M 17 345,000,0008% & B @ &
010 THBRM AR S - BEERERPA
FHREFEARERANEEEE  KEEH
BARERE  RIEFAWE-

124 China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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On 10 November 2009, the Company issued 345,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for cash under the placing of existing shares and top-up
subscription of new shares at the price of HK$0.80 each. The management
intended to use the net proceeds for developing wind energy projects,
improving the capital structure of the Group as well as enhancing market

capitalisation.
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29.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from

prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 26 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves

and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall

capital structure.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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30.£€fTH 30.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SR T HEER Categories of financial instruments
2009 2008
FET THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRMEE Financial assets
B R e BR R Loans and receivables (including
(BRAEERREEEY) cash and cash equivalents) 1,235,471 413,976
TREE Financial liabilities
E N Amortised cost 1,335,756 860,684
SHMEREEERERBR Financial risk management objectives and policies

AEEZTIESRTIARERE I REM
UK - U ENBEARN  EH
RBAEFR  ROEPRER - RITEH
ERE BHRAMEMRARMER -
ARZEERTAZHBENSHER
NE- AHZEeRTIAZARREER
ZERRZHRERN T o

SRIAHAKREARERERE
2 EREERRERZTAR NUE
REmEHAFUZEERE - AKH
ARz GERR  RBASERRT
SREBRHHERRGERRZ AL
mYE -
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The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from/to associates, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set

out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure
to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk.
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BEECHGERARERETEMNEE
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CHBRRETHAZRERBE - LM
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

30.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 3|
December 2009 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated a credit
policy and delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

As at 3| December 2009, there was an amount due from an
associate of the Group, Beijing EWT-CASC Directwind Marketing
and Sales Co.,, Ltd. of HK$207,728,000 (2008: Nil). The management
considered the financial position and good creditability of the
associate and believed that there is no significant credit risk on the

receivable from the associate.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks with high credit ratings.
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0.2 T H » 30.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

SREREERERBR (4)

5 2 B
| 3 [ B

AREAXRFRRTEE (FL2HEME

26) RZ RIRTTHES (F2RAMT24) BA
ZHReREMNERER ZTEEREER
MERE YTERAZFERZRE—F
Hh A =@ R o

AEEAZETEEEE (F2HMT26)
RESRITHES (FLHMF20Kk24) 5
BeAFENRRER BEEEREER
FEER  TERERHREANEE
MEEZEEETERTEE -

AEBFHeRARNXARNFE
ERAMETLRDELRRER —&
HoAEE HEeRENERREES
RREERITRAEF SRS -

ARBTEROBRTERMNRNKE
MAEBBRTHEBTAZIRERERN
BR - AAREERRAEREATZ
RBRTERZNERAREAEKN @ B
AERTEBKREFRONEHAIIS -

BRI

Ttz BEE DM R B RITE R Rt
BRITEERHE R TERAT 2
RREE - RARTEHNFNEETE
EFEERTEMERT

WEEBRITHEBRBAIBEZFNE LA
/S TES0ERF  MABHMATZRER
BEHETE  IXAEEZHBENES
EFH /T % 492,337,000 T (ZEEN
% : 966,000/ 7T) °
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
floating-rate borrowings (note 26 for details) and variable-rate bank
balances (note 24 for details). The management continuously
monitors interest rate fluctuation and will consider further hedging

interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate borrowings (note 26 for details) and fixed-rate bank
balances (notes 20 and 24 for details). The management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank

borrowings when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR.

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing deposit rate on bank
balances. The directors of the Company consider the Group's
exposure to interest rate risk on the short-term bank deposits is not
significant as interest bearing bank balances and deposits are within

short maturity period.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank balances and interest bearing
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period and the
stipulated changes taking place at the beginning of the year and held
constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on floating-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings have been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would have
increased/decreased by approximately HK$2,337,000
(2008:HK$966,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

30.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source
of liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding
are available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial
obligations due for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity

position.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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0.2 T H » 30.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
ERHEABEEEERBR (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
HEBE 2 R = g & Liquidity and interest risk tables

ik 837 3

RRAZ RenE

Weighted ~ HEXE &4
average f SMEAR  123ER EREIE HENE Tt KEE
effective On  Less than I-3 3 months 125§ Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate ~ demand [ month  months  to|year -5 years Syears cashflows  amount

% TEr TEr TEr TEr T TEr  TEr  TEx
% HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D

ZERNE 2009

FESHEE Non-derivative financial liabilities

BARAMEN Trade and other payables = 4407 10850 21,892 7% 11360 = 56490 56490

ffE-%E8 Borrowings - fxed rate 518 = = — 195089 Ted&S 2608 130831 1147410

FE-2E Borrowings - loating rate 208 = 25 45| 28 13330 — 13084 130000

ERBEAF Amounts due to associates = 185 - - = = = [ 85 | 85
6,263 1,075 0343 305078 908425 210078 1515060 1335756

ZEERNE 2008

FEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities

EAREMENT Trade and other payables - 23195 4701 29,646 - = = 9754) 9754)

FE-E8 Borrowings - fixed rate 5 = = S6% 508 465 1498 908419 761690

ERBEATHN Amounts due to associates - 1452 - - - - - 1452 1452
U647 4701 35,302 205,043 546,552 149208 1005473 860,684

AFE Fair values

cHEERERABZATE  NRIE The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

BABREREIM AR EBER - & determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models

RABRENTER P ZEBRANKRE based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from

E ° observable current market transactions as input.

BEERR REHEKAS AR N BER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

rZeBMEERSRBEZREERE and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

REERE financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

31.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 27 May 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shanghai STEP Electric Co. Ltd., an independent third party, for the
acquisition of additional 20% interest of an associate, Jiangsu Wan
Yuan for a cash consideration of approximately HK$I 1,970,000
(RMB10,500,000). Jiangsu Wan Yuan is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of hi-tech rare-earth permanent magnet motors for
elevator in Jiangsu Province and distribution in Beijing. The
transaction was completed on | July 2008. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, the Group was entitled to appoint up to four out of
seven directors to the board of directors of Jiangsu Wan Yuan and
obtained control over Jiangsu Wan Yuan. Accordingly, Jiangsu Wan
Yuan was accounted for as a 49% owned subsidiary of the Company.
Details of the acquisition were set out in the Company's circular
dated || June 2008.

On 27 October 2008, the Group also entered into an agreement
with Wan Yuan Science and Technology Corporation (“WY Science
and Technology"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT, for the
acquisition of additional 15% interest of an associate, Aerospace
Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co,, Ltd. (“Liaoning Benxi") for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$19,456,000 (RMBI17,060,000).
Liaoning Benxi is principally engaged in the maintenance and
operation of wind energy plants and facilities in Benxi, the PRC.The
transaction was completed on | December 2008. Upon the
completion of the acquisition, Liaoning Benxi was accounted for as a
55% owned subsidiary of the Company. Details of the acquisition

were set out in the Company's circular dated |4 November 2008.
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MNWHEMBAT @ 31.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
REMBEEEREELEZBHEFHIM The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the goodwill arising,
L are as follows:

TEHBIR EELXZK

Jiangsu Liaoning me
Wan Yuan Benxi Total
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000
PiSHEE : Net assets acquired:
ME - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 10,315 212,144 222,459
FE Inventories 29222 3,763 32,985
B 5 K H it e WK Trade and other receivables 23,799 8,287 32,086
IRTTEHR KRS Bank balances and cash [ 311 1,078 2,389
B 5 R H A ER R Trade and other payables (37,698) (1,526) (39,224)
H 15 5K Other borrowings — (107,160) (107,160)
26,949 116,586 143,535
BB A 25 Minority interests (13,744) (52,464) (66,208)
BB Goodwil 6,580 1,968 8,548
19,785 66,090 85,875
ATB B IES AT Satisfied by:
Be Cash 8,379 — 8,379
e KB Consideration payable (included in
(BHEE S REMERMNK) trade and other payables) 3,591 19,456 23,047
B B o ) e Transfer from interests in associates 7815 46,634 54,449
19,785 66,090 85,875
WSl e ERe Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on
(RHE) WA : acquisition:
BENREKE Cash consideration paid (8,379) — (8,379)
IRITHER KA Bank balances and cash [ 311 1,078 2,389
(7,068) 1,078 (5,990)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

31.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For Jiangsu Wan Yuan, goodwill arose in the business combination
because the cost of the combination included a premium paid to
acquire Jiangsu Wan Yuan. The consideration paid for the
combinations effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of future market development and the assembled workforce of

Jiangsu Wan Yuan.

For Liaoning Benxi, goodwill arose in the business combination
because the cost of the combinations included a premium paid to
acquire Liaoning Benxi. The consideration paid for the combinations
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth and future development of wind energy

operations.

Jiangsu Wan Yuan contributed HK$3,007,000 to the Group's profit
for the period between the date of acquisition and 31 December
2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2008, total
Group’s revenue for the year ended 3| December 2008 would have
been HK$195,026,000, and loss for the year ended 3| December
2008 would have been HK$498,037,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on |

January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Liaoning Benxi contributed HK$4,448,000 to the Group'’s profit for
the period between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2008, total
Group's revenue for the year ended 3| December 2008 would have
been HK$211,570,000, and loss for the year ended 3| December
2008 would have been HK$486,303,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on |

January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
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R2.EFKIE 32.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(@) R-_EEAFT-_A=t—H" & (a) At 31 December 2009, the Group was committed to capital
SEAHEITNERBEZERH expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
% #163,060,0008 T (ZEF N\ & : HK$63,060,000 (2008: HK$53,067,000) relating to its
53,067,000/ L) * BEAKER RS investments in sino-foreign enterprises of the Group. In addition,
RONEBERE - WA AEAR capital commitment contracted but not provided for relating to
BAEERBEAR ORI 2 HEE the Group'’s interest in a jointly controlled entity established in
HEE BT AEREE 2 E R Inner Mongolia in the PRC amounts to HK$ 18,535,000 as at 3|

wZMBER_ZTENFT_A=T December 2009 (2008: Nil).

— H /318,635,000 L (ZFFN
FE) -

b) RZZEZNFTZA=+—HB K (b) At 31 December 2008, the Group was committed to capital
SEEAREANERBBEZEARH expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
% #740,014,000% 7T - E@AFEE HK$40,014,000 with Beijing CASC Wanyuan Construction
ST R T b (TSR ]) (R A Project Corporation Ltd. (“WY Construction Project”), a fellow
AZRNERRE) FHB0% A% subsidiary with 80% interest held by China Academy of Launch
MBLARIRMAEREETLRS Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), an intermediate holding company
REEARI([BEREETIR]) & of the Company, in which WY Construction Project was
REETIREPEAR SR ERMH engaged to provide construction works of plants, offices,
ERERERBRRERRBAEER warehouses of direct-drive wind turbine blade plant and direct-
ZHE BAEREEMRET drive wind turbine general assembly plant in Inner Mongolia in
2 ° the PRC.

BEEFHERS 33.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

B ®34,072,0008 TBHER-_ZEZNF A deposit of HK$34,072,000 was included in deposit paid for the

TZA=+—BXNKEDE  BHER acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December

Rz Re BE_ZTNFTHA= 2008. The amount was used to acquire property, plant and

T-—HBLEFEE  ZeECRAERED equipment for the year ended 31 December 2009.

X -BERRHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

34.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of land and buildings as set out below:

2009 2008

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 4,176 6,415
B FEFRIF (BEMEBEEN) In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,702 2,238
6,878 8,653

BO—RAFHMERETEN - M
SREHATRE -
AKEMEBHBAA

KBS HEEEE  AEERESTY
TENARSEREREDT -

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two years
and rentals are fixed for the lease period.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2009 2008

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 1,292 1,292
B FEFRIF (EEMEBEEN) In the second to fifth year inclusive — 1292
1,292 2,584
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35.R K EFIGHEl 35.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

ARERBEMBRERERETRA
HoEeE 8 ([ZF8])) - Zat8I2&
ENRASBEENRBRELAETA
Zhl o REERAHEF AR 26%(EH
#H - MEEMELRFHR -

ARAlzHBMBARERATERA
ERZBARERERAKBMGE T 2K
B -ARAzHBEMWBLARARKS

FMARAENGERE T B LS
SRR A ST B A o A5 B 3L AR K 48 7 &t
|2 E—BERRBAEELAT

o

SO0

t

Bl

B

|
Sy

N

=t AU A Z B AN 48 58 4,967,000 7T (=
TZE )\ : 971,000/ 7T) Bl A &£ B R A
S HANENZSHEZHE -
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make

the required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to income of HK$4,967,000 (2008:
HK$971,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(@) During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Sales of goods to associates 314,565 3,801
Interest paid to ASTF 36,413 28,314

Brbaish  AREBEHEBBEALZAE
REER B KT FE22 0 23 0 25K 26%

E'Etg o

RZBEEAFE+_A=-tARB &
SEMAEREAMBAERAQA
(TAEEM]) (RREHEBL6.41%
BEZNBAR) ERSEaEMABR
RERBEREERLA([AKE
B]) (AREEEBRERHBED
7)) AIMIER ek - Bt - AREM
ARBE-Z——F+=-A=+—
At =@M REEERRBRIERGZ

BRAASEREERBER o A
Eibr 2 BB R AR M B R T
EHEBRAREM41.03% % - &
N AREMRARER L E565E
REER - {{E&K%40,425,000
7T (1% 7 46,085,0008 7T) - B %
REFBHERARAR AP A=-TE
NEFTZAZt+thBHARF o

Other than the above, the Group also has balances with related
parties disclosed in notes 22, 23, 25 and 26.

On 29 December 2009, Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Material Co. Ltd. ("IM Composite Material"), a
subsidiary with 56.41% equity interest owned by the Company,
entered into a framework agreement with Inner Mongolia
CASC Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd. ("IM Wind
Turbine Manufacture"), a subsidiary with 95% equity interest
owned by the Company in relation to the supply of wind
turbine blades for wind turbines for the three financial years
ending 31 December 201 1. Aerospace Research Institute of
Materials & Processing Technology, which is a subsidiary of CALT,
has a 41.03% equity interest in IM Composite Material. During
the year, IM Composite Material sold 55 sets of wind blades to
IM Wind Turbine Manufacture amounted to RMB40,425,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,085,000). Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company's announcement dated
29 December 2009.
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36.EMENTZR D R 36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(%) (Continued)
) TBEBABZEHM (c) Compensation of key management personnel
FRATBREBABZHEMWT : The remuneration of key management during the year was as
follows:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
SRR Short-term benefits 5,204 5,705
BEAR 12 18 7 Post-employment benefits 12 12
5,216 5717
TEERABZEFHBEFENEE S The remuneration of key management is determined by the
BREARBEETSBEETE - remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

(d PRHABEEAEMERENER 2R (d) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in the

5/ 1 PRC

AEBRE R i B BT E &k The Group operates in an economic environment currently

BEHEAURH BB ([BIRERE predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or

BIERBERETLE - It controlled by the PRC government (*“state-controlled entities”).

o REBASRE G EBTE In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of

HlehMBETZRAREER - companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.

AEEHEAMBEREHNERA XS The Group conducts business with other state-controlled

ER-BEEZRR BRAKEEARSE entities. The directors consider those state-controlled entities

ZEBRERME  ZEBAREHE are independent third parties so far as the Group's business

BHBBIE=FR : with them are concerned:

() AEERBEEXEBRERES (i) The Group has certain deposits placements and other
FTRITORBERZEHER) A general banking facilities with certain banks, which are
ETHERREM -RRITE stated-controlled entities in its ordinary course of business.
E-BERZEROXZ2HK In view of the nature of those banking transactions, the
H B8 MULAEEER directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would
BYEEEEE - not be meaningful.
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36.AREATZR S SR

(&)

(d)

RPBEEEMBEREHNERZX
5/ &% (B)

(i) AEBTEETELPRHERERD
BEETEERD  EERA-
EREHNENEZSTR SR
OREHMBEREHERET
EBTYER -

FREXAEEEN  EERREH
HEREHERET IR SHAL
BoRELBEEATE -

RZFETAFANAZH AEEH
KRz 2ENBRRERRAEX
REMBEBRARGIMHE - UK
B-HBRARAIIGEMABREBLE
BERARZEII3%EE  HeR
B4 51,540,000 - RHERE
AREMR °

RZZETNF+-_A=+—RH2fE
EREREANSRERT MEZH
BRRAMAREMBERRIEAZ
WEEHA ££767,790,0007 7Tk A
R #673,500,00070 (ZZZ )\ F
486,210,000% T sk A R ¥
426,500,0007T) ° B @ E XK A EIK
BEEEFSENTIT%E6% ' &
A 543,210,0008 T & A K
476,500,000 (= & & N\ & :
486,210,000 7 % A R ¥
426,500,0007T) & 224,580,000/ 7T
g A R #197,000,0007T (=TT N\
F:E)EIRR T ——FNAR
—E-FMAEE-

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Continued)

(d)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(i) The Group also has certain sales and purchases transactions
with certain customers and suppliers in which the directors
are of the opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the
identity of the counterparties and accordingly whether the

transactions are with other state-controlled entities.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that
the transactions with other state-controlled entities are not

significant to the Group's operations.

On 3 June 2009, the Group entered into an agreement withik
AERIERAESEEBER A, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CALT, for the acquisition of additional 3% equity of a subsidiary,
Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co., Ltd. for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$1,540,000. The transaction

was completed on the same date.

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2009 were four loans
advanced from CALT through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the
trustee totalling HK$767,790,000 or RMB673,500,000 (2008:
HK$486,210,000 or RMB426,500,000) which are unsecured and
bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 3.7% to 6% per annum.
Loans of HK$543,210,000 or RMB476,500,000 (2008:
HK$486,210,000 or RMB426,500,000) and HK$224,580,000 or
RMB197,000,000 (2008: Nil) are repayable in April 201 | and
April 2014 respectively.

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

36.EFMEALZR D G 36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ BALANCES

(%) (Continued)

(9 RZZEZNFT_A=1+—HBzE (g) Included in borrowings at 31 December 2008 were two loans
EAERERARAEEERA A from Astrotech, of HK$35,000,000 and HK$90,000,000 which
Astrotech 2 /M % & 7% 35,000,000% carried fixed-rate interest at 5.58% per annum and 6% per
7T % 90,000,000 7T - FAERZ annum respectively and were fully repaid during the year.

BEEFS XD R AE558%%6% B
RERNZHEE -

hy RZEZNFT+-_A=+—BHKE (h) Included in borrowings at 3| December 2009 was a loan of
ERFEda—RHRELR/NRERRM HK$94,620,000 or RMB83,000,000 (2008: HK$ 104,880,000 or
2 — £ 5 3094,620,0008 L AR RMB92,000,000) advanced from a minority shareholder of a
# 83,000,000 (= T & )\ £ : subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, bears fixed-rate interest at
104,880,000 7T 3t A R ¥ 6.2% per annum and is repayable in full in November 2020.

92,000,0007T) © ZREREER R
BEFER62% WAR-_ZT_T
FTr—HA2HEER-

IVHREHERER 37.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
R-ZZE-ZTF_A+R ARAIEZE On 10 February 2010, the Company has entered into an agreement
RERERKRAR  —BUE=ZFLH with Energya Wind Technologies B.V., an independent third party to
# W AR ¥ 16000007 (18 &R purchase additional 40% equity interest in Beijing EWT-CASC
1,820,000 7T) WL "M R EERE Directwind Marketing and Sales Co. Ltd. (“Directwind Sales”), an
EREHEARAA ((EREAKHEE]) 25% owned associate of the Company established in Beijing, the
ZEIN0%ES  EREBEERARD PRC, at a consideration of RMBI,600,000 (equivalent to
AEE2D%ERBE DR WRP HK$1,820,000). Directwind Sales is principally engaged in the sales of
IR - ERABEETEREHE wind turbines. Upon the completion of acquisition, the Company will
B REBTKE  ARERAER hold 65% equity interest in Directwind Sales.

FELH 35 & 2 65% & e
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B A

REREHEEEH

R-_ETZAER_EENF+ A=+
—HzAEBETENRBAD BEQA
RERZEHEREERMT

NAER

Name of company

WEDR

Subsidiaries

EEBEMALREE

BRTEEREZ
HE/ ERRE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capitall
registered capital

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:

HERANRBEERAR
China Aerospace
Telecommunications Limited

MEERXBARAA
CASTEL Intelligent Transportation
System Limited

RAMRER (BE)BRAA

China Aerospace Telecommunications

(Hong Kong) Limited

BEETARAHA

Hung Nien Electronics Limited

REE£ERAH
Tin Shun Industrial Limited

NBRERAERLA

New Image Development Limited

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

11,600,000 7T
HK$ 11,600,000

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

30,001,000% 7T
HK$30,001,000

VBT
HK$2

T
HKS |

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities of the Company at 3| December 2009 and 2008 are as
follows:

RAEZ 2B
KR S =
BE% FE15 %
Percentage of equity
held by attributable ~ TEXK
the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2009 2008 2009 2008
% % % %
— — 100 100 HHERBEH
Distribution of
broadband business
- — 100 70 PRBRIBERER
Distribution of
[TS business
— — 100 100 HHERHEH
Distribution of
broadband business
- — 100 100 SHEAER
Distribution of
telecommunication
products
- — 100 00 %AZR
Investment holding
- — 100 100 ®RAZR

Investment holding

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HE-_ZTTAF+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3.EEMBATE  BEAT 38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
REREFEESEN @ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
BRATEEREZ RABEZEDH
mE/ERER LN LN |
Nominal value of BE% FEfE%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
GRS share capitall held by attributable ~ FEEH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2009 2008 2009 2008
% % % %
ERBELAEEHAMA L REE
Incorporated and operating in British Virgin Islands:
ERERARDT EyH 100 100 - —  REBRK
Advanced Grade Holdings Limited USs! Investment holding
NBERERAF EyH - — 100 100 REZK
Crownplus International Limited US$! Investment holding
EREEMEEE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IraERARRA 1,239,000% T - — 18 5 RRENEREARE
Beijing Qihua Commumcations US$1,239,000 GPS applications services
Co, Ltd*
ERBRIXERAR ARE - — 100 100 REZRK
Beijing Energine Industry Co, Ltd**  118,251,0007 Investment holding
RMBI 18,251,000
THEMAERRLERARAA N - — 52 49 HERSHIREER
Jiangsu Aerospace WanYuan 50,000,0007C Manufacture and
REPM Motor Co, Ltd* RMB50,000,000 distribution of
elevator products
RARBNR tR)BRAR Nt - — 100 100 DHRFEH
15,000,000 Distribution of
RMBI5,000,000 broadband business
mAER(ZR)BNEBARAA  ARK - = 55 55 B5ER
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) 93,800,0007C Operation of wind farm
Wind Power Co, Ltd* RMB93,800,000
RABRAE (R BRA R 20,000,000% 7T - — 100 100 DHEEBEH
(B AR BB E (RN HK$20,000,000 Distribution of

ERAA)
(previously known as “fit X BH&
BERIDERRR"

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BEEMBAT  BEAT

RIREHHE

RAER

Name of company

AR ERAE R RA S
ARAAEH
Inner Mongolia Energine New

Energy Development Co. Ltd#*

REREMAEREERARE
BRAR

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Wind Turbine Manufacture
Co. Ltd*

ARERAEREAHHERAA

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Material Co. Ltd*

mAMBBEREBRE (R
BRAAH

& @)

BRTEEREZ
HE/ ERRE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capitall

registered capital

AR #80,000,000
RMB80,000,000

AR 50,000,000
RMB50,000,000

AR 80,000,000
RMB80,000,000

AR %20,000,000
RMB20,000,000

HE-_ZTAF+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

RAERZED N
b N big ]
£8% 1%
Percentage of equity
held by attributable ~ TEXK
the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2009 2008 2009 2008
% % % %
- — 100 100 HERD HEE
Manufacture and
distribution of wind
turbine generators
- — 95 95 BER D HERER
R#ER
Manufacture and
distribution of wind
turbines and blades
- — 56 55 BEERER
Manufacture of wind
turbine blades
- — 100 100 HERHHENER

Manufacture and
distribution of
telecommunication

products

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

BEIEMBAT  BHEAT
REEEHEESE »)

kL

Name of company

BENT
Associates

REBEMKYREE :

Registered and operating in the PRC:
AHZRBERE (R BRARH

CASIL Telecommunications
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.*

TEHRRENEEFRAT
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind
Power Co, Ltd*

GHERBNETARAAM
Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Corp. Ltd

IRMAEERERAMHE
BRAR

Beijing EWT-CASC Directwind
Marketing and Sales Co, Ltd.*

ATHBEERARERAT

APHRAERBE
RiARAA

BRATEEREZ
mE/ERRA
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

13,000,000% 7
HK$13,000,000

ARH
3333200007
RMB333,320,000

AR
438,200,0007C
RMB438,200,000

ARH
10,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T
RMB20,000,000

A K #20,000,0007T
RMB20,000,000

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

RABEZADL

the Company

2009

%

25

2008

%

25

Percentage of equity

attributable
to the Group
2009 2008
% %
33 33
25 25
15 5
25 25
25 100

IERH

Principal activities

HERDHENER

Manufacture and
distribution of
telecommunication
products

R5EE
Operation of wind farm

B5EE
Operation of wind farm

PHEKEm

Distribution of
wind turbine
products

REERAMR
ERENRSER

Development of computer
software and GPS

WERDHERENEZRER
Manufacture and distribution
of GPS product
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

BBEEMBAT - BHEAT 38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
EiEEHNEEEH @ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
BRAEBREZ BAERZEA L
HE/ERBE KAH 5
Nominal value of BE% FE{5%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NEER share capitall held by attributable TEER
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2009 2008 2009 2008
% % % %
HEEHER
Jointly controlled entities
R Bl v R s -
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IRERAREREIRERZR 16,000,000 70 - — 49 49 RERBEPRERZS
BRAF! US$16,000,000 Manufacture of
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine automotive engine
Management Systems Co, Ltd* management systems
and components
IRERRETERT LS AR - — 40 40 RETFEHER
BRAF 100,000,0007C Manufacture of
Beijing Wanyuan-Henniges Sealing RMB100,000,000 automotive sealing
Systems Co, Ltd* systems
HRAMABRZAKARERR AR % 100,000,000 - — 45 45 RERERR
HEBER AT RMB00,000,000 Manufacture of
Nantong CASC Wanyuan Acciona wind turbine
Wind Turbine Manufacture
Corporation Ltd*
NEEABERMERERA RMB92,610,000 - — 49 — Bi5EE
ARE Operation of wind farm
92,610,0007C
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

3.EEMBATE  BEAT 38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
EiEEHEEESHE @ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

# RHBETMzRIIEEEERE - #  Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.

# NHEFZMZ2NERE - ## Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

#if REEERZEZAESELEES ###The Group is entitled to appoint up to two out of seven directors to
PRZMEES - At EXEERRA the board of directors of this company. Hence, in the opinion of the
SEUZRARBEEERTZEN  WED directors of the Company, the Group has significant influence over the
AARAAEEEF15% B2 AA] company. Accordingly, the company is accounted for as a 15% owned

associate of the Group.

BRAPBEKZ 2 AEN AEREFE L Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of
BRARBRNDZ BRI RAZERAETZE shares held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary
B e shares issued by those companies.

BEZERRBR  LIBREKAE2EE The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and jointly
MEAR  HELAARAAEHE controlled entities of the Company which, in the opinion of the
B IREAREREXBEECFEDR directors, principally affected the results or assets or form a
ARREKAEECEEFEZ T ER substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
Do EERR - Y E AN E QR R other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the
ERAZER  BLAHTBERTE - directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BEHSEHR  WERARSERTEM None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
BHEES ° the reporting period.
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FiveYears’ Financial Summary

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
F&T F&T FEx FEL FERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BER Turnover 185,784 156,199 178,755 184,206 663,373
B 75 B s Al (B548) Profit (loss) before taxation (29,874) (66,931) (570,521) (488,507) 77,892
FIE () ER Taxation (charge) credit 510 1,706 (1,510) (7421) (7,091)
RNEE&EF (BE) Profit (loss) for the year (29,364) (65,225) (572,031) (495,928) 70,801
R+=-A=+-—H
At 31 December
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
FET  TET  TET  FET  TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEERERE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
EERLTE Total assets 352,356 417,642 2,214,648 2,165,730 3,129,179
BEHERE Total liabilities (197,726) (325,356) (642,805) (889,818) (1,484,381)
FEEME Net assets 154,630 92,286 [,571,843 1275912 1,644,798
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